GRAND RMT COUNTY
P

T R s T e e
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT, CONVENTION, SHOW & SPORTE FACILITIES

Meeting of Board of Directors

Wednesday, April 27, 2005
* 8:00 a.m. — 9:30 a.m. *
Kent County Board Room, 3" Floor
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

AGENDA
L Call to Order
Convention I1. Approval of March 23, 2005 Minutes Action
Arena
Authority II.  Airport Master Plan Update — James Koslosky, Susan Sherman Information
Steven Heacock, IV. Committee Reports
Chairman a. Operations Committee Information
Birgit Klohs 1. CVB Update
Clif Charles b. Finance Committee
Gary Mclnerney i. Approval of SMG March 2005 Financial Action
George Heartwell Statements - DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®
Joseph Tomaselli ii. Approval of CAA March 2005 Financial Action
Lew Chamberlin Statements and Disbursements
iil. Renewal of Directors & Officers Insurance Action
V. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars Information
V1. Committee Appointments Information

VII. Public Comment
VIII. Next Meeting Date — May 25, 2005

IX. Adjournment

* NOTE: Time Change *

Van Andel Arenae®

2;30 I;ulton West 303 M DeV:s Plﬁlc
rand Rapids, MI 49503- ’ onroe Ave. \"
SCLCP LI, 2601 Grand Rapids, MI 49503-223
Fax 616.742.6197 Fax 2}2';3%228




Item 11

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, March 23, 2005

I. Call to Order

Chairman Steve Heacock called the meeting to order at 7:35 a.m. Chairman Heacock presided
and Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs recorded.

Attendance

Members Present: Steve Heacock, Chairman
Lew Chamberlin
George Heartwell
Birgit Klohs
Gary Mclnerney
Joseph Tomaselli

Members Absent: Clif Charles

Staff/Others: David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Jim Day Kent County
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
George Helmstead CVB
Kurt Kimball City of Grand Rapids
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Dale Sommers CAA Owner Representative
Greg Sundstrom City of Grand Rapids
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Jim Watt SMG
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White Kent County
Steve Wilson CVB

Minutes of Prior Meetings

Motion: Mr. Chamberlin, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the Minutes of the February
23, 2005, meeting of the Authority. Motion carried unanimously.

I11. Convention & Visitors Bureau Update

Mr. Tomaselli, Chairman of the Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention & Visitors Bureau Board (CVB),
presented an update. Tourism is the second largest industry in Michigan, and the CVB is the principal
destination marketing organization for western Michigan. The CVB has 18 sales and marketing
employees and a 25-member board of directors. Its annual budget is $2.8 million, which is funded by the
County hotel/motel tax, hotel assessments, and memberships. Mr. Tomaselli offered several
comparisons:



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
March 23, 2005 - 2

Scope of Conventions Grand Center DeVos Place
Exhibit space 117,000 sq. ft. 225,000 sq. ft.
Maximum number of booths 167 865

Ballroom capacity 1,130 2,500

Total meetings hosted 60,000 [2004 to 2005] 96,000

The competition for new convention business has never been tougher. Several choices exist in a buyers’
market, with 44 cities that have new or expanded facilities. The CVB has organized a resource committee
to look at ways to attract more conventions. Our main competitors:

City Convention Space
Pittsburgh 330,000 sq. ft.
Milwaukee 189,000 sq. ft.
Indianapolis 404,000 sq. ft.
Columbus 425,000 sq. ft.
Omaha 194,000 sq. ft.
Grand Rapids 225,000 sq. ft.

Economic signs point to a brighter lodging industry for 2005:

Lodging Industry Outlook 2003 2004
County-wide Occupancy 54.6% 54.6%
Hotel Tax Growth -1.3% 2.8%
Michigan Occupancy 52.1% 54.1%
Revenue per Room -8% 0.5%

Working with the Amway Grand Plaza and SMG, the CVB developed strategies to begin marketing
DeVos Place in 1999. The first national booking was the American Association of Meat Processing.
Factors contributing to successful marketing of DeVos Place include value, located in a second-tier city,
Midwest focus, delegates from smaller towns, attractive to specialty markets (service clubs, religious
organizations):

Base Pre-Opening Strategy Revised Strategy
Scope State National Regional
Guest Rooms <1,000 1,000-1,500 300 - 500
Exhibit Space <100,000 100,000-150,000 “Layered” Space
History Rotate in Michigan National Regional

(Largest growth potential)

In response to Chairman Heacock’s comments about the need for accessibility, the CVB board has
approved to contract for a business case study in diversity. Additionally, the CVB is in the process of
hiring two minorities for its sales staff. Recent bookings include the Community Leadership Association,
Lions Leadership Conference, and the International Conference of Police Chaplains. Planners for the
American Coal Directors will be in town next week for a final site inspection.

V. DeVos Place Construction Update

Mr. Sommers stated that, although the office would close on March 31, a protocol has been developed to
address problems and for warranty work. When the building was turned over on February 1, the closeout



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
March 23, 2005 -3

list contained 770 items. That number is down to 10. In February, the punch list contained 233 items and
that has been decreased to 27.

V. Committee Reports

Finance Committee
Ms. Klohs presented the Finance Committee reports.

a. Approval of SMG Financial Statements for DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®
Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for
DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended February 28, 2005. Motion carried
unanimously.

b. Approval of CAA Disbursements and Financial Statements

Motion: Ms.Klohs, supported by Mr.Tomaselli, moved to approve the CAA Disbursements and F inancial
Statements for the period ended February 28, 2005. Motion carried unanimously.

C. Proposed Budget Calendar

SMG will present its initial FY 2006 operating budgets, 5-year capital programs, and FY 2006 capital
replacement budgets at the April 21 Finance Committee meeting. At the May 19 meeting, staff will
present the FY 2006 administrative budget. The City-County Liaison Committee will meet on May 26 to
review the budgets. Staff will provide an overview of current CAA financial position. The F inance
Committee will review and recommend the SMG operating forecast and FY 2006 budgets at its June 16
meeting. The CAA Board will approve the budget forecast and adopt the FY 2006 budgets at its June 22
meeting.

The DeVos Place® parking agreement expires in June 2005. Bob White is working with SMG and the
City regarding future operation of the parking facility.

VL SMG Report

Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan reported upcoming events at Van Andel Arena® include Sting, John Mellencamp,
Kenny Chesney, Steven Curtis Chapman, Green Day, Motley Crue, Disney on Ice, NCAA Hockey,
GVSU and Davenport commencements, Rampage football, and Griffins hockey. DeVos Place® is busy
with the Michigan Petroleum Association, George Carlin, Broadway Theater Guild’s Thoroughly
Modern Millie, Sweet Adelines, and the Gospel play Girl, He Ain’t Worth It. Mr. MacKeigan
acknowledged the Griffins who moved a hockey date so that Kenny Chesney would be able to play two
consecutive dates.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting

March 23, 2005 - 4

VIL. 2005 Initiatives

Chairman Heacock outlined his priorities for the upcoming year:

a.

b.

Review of Booking Policy — A three-person subcommittee will review the operation of
the policy and report to Board in June whether any changes are required.

Long-Term Capital Plan — Birgit and Finance Committee will appoint a subcommittee to
develop a proposed long-term plan. Gary McInerney will lead an effort to determine how
the CAA can enhance revenue. A subcommittee will be formed to determine if the CAA
should be involved in an outdoor amphitheater. The committees will report their findings
at the November 2005 Board meeting.

CAA Relationship with City and County — City and County appointees will act as a
subcommittee to design a process to assure timely and open communication and will
report to the Board by its September 2005 meeting.

Accessibility — Clif Charles will lead a committee to examine the reach of our efforts and
prepare a plan that includes financially viable actions to better address the needs of our
diverse community. The subcommittee will report to the Board by its December 2005
meeting.

VIII. Public Comment

Mike Wilberham, Vice President of ShowSpan, expressed appreciation to the Board and SMG for their
work to ensure the success of the consumer shows.

IX. Next Meeting Date

The next CAA Board meeting is Wednesday, April 27, 2005.

X. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 8:50 a.m.

Birgit M. Klohs, Recording Secretary



Item IV.b.i.

P ACE

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Hank Abate

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2005

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 343 107 450 376 74
ATTENDANCE 483,804 141,800 625,604 670,425 (44,821)
DIRECT EVENT REVENUE 1,537,580 473,540 2,011,120 1,987,844 23,276
ANCILLARY REVENUE 1,021,108 315,457 1,336,565 1,092,068 244,497
TOTAL EVENT REVENUE 2,558,688 788,997 3,347,685 3,079,912 267,773
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 80,227 39,952 120,179 167,000 (46,821)
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 2,638,915 828,949 3,467,864 3,246,912 220,952
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 86,127 35,420 121,547 127,132 5,585
FINANCE 152,955 48,750 201,705 201,022 (683)
MARKETING 39,212 16,478 55,690 61,260 5,570
OPERATIONS 610,416 322,540 932,956 1,000,395 67,439
EVENT SERVICES 550,514 - 295,470 845,984 884,638 38,654
BOX OFFICE 60,321 21,400 81,721 85,107 3,386
SALES 101,662 34,780 136,442 135,838 (604)
OVERHEAD 1,692,536 521,400 2,213,936 2,140,462 (73,474)

TOTAL OPERATING EXP. 3,293,743 1,296,238 4,589,981 4,635,854 45,873
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES (654,830) (467,289) (1,122,117) (1,388,942) 266,825
CAPITAL -
NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER (654,830) (467,289) (1,122,117) (1,388,942) 266,825

OPERATING EXPENSES
Comments:

DeVos Place came in ahead of budget for the month. Rent from events continues
to hold constant with budgeted expectations, however, at the same time anciliary
income has continued to be greater than budget and has contributed the overage
through the first 3 quarters of the fiscal year. The balance of the fiscal year

looks to hold consistent or slightly ahead of the original budget.




SMG DeVos Place

Year to Date Event Summary Report
For Month Ended March 31, 2005

Event Type
Convention/Trade Shows
Consumer/Gated Shows
Devos Performance Hall
Ballroom Exclusive
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Convention/Trade Shows
Consumer/Gated Shows
Devos Performance Hall
Ballroom Exclusive

Other

Events/Days

Actual Budget

83

50

106

12

92

343

24.20%

14.58%

30.90%

3.50%

26.82%

72

51

104

33

269

26.77%

18.96%

38.66%

3.35%

12.27%

Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget
78,800 83,750 823,324 715,609
209,013 247,050 888,421 892,426
139,678 153,900 479,332 447,892
6,570 4,500 34,278 75,915
49,743 39,425 333,288 209,965
483,804 528,625 2,558,643 2,341,807
16.29% 15.84% 32.18% 30.56%
43.20% 46.73% 34.12% 38.11%
28.87% 29.11% 18.73% 19.13%
1.36% 0.85% 1.34% 3.24%
10.28% 7.46% 13.03% 8.97%



DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2005, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH March March March
Actual Budget FY 2004
Number of Events 58 41 47
Attendance 106,556 117,500 90,719
Direct Event Income $324,952 $313,027 $266,292
Ancillary Income 193,820 183,425 167,432
Other Income 7,403 13,917 10,475
Indirect Expenses (434,160) (445,062) (372,290)
Net Income $92,016 $65,307 $71,908
YTD YTD 2005 YTD 2005 YTD 2004
Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 343 269 253
Attendance 483,804 528,625 458,069
Direct Event Income $1,537,580 $1,543,997 $1,205,494
Ancillary Income 1,021,108 797,810 653,502
Other Income 80,227 125,253 86,816
indirect Expenses (3,293,744) (3,558,958) (2,591,985)
Net Income ($654,830) ($1,091,898) ($646,173)

EVENT INCOME

Direct event income came in ahead of budget for the month, and consistent with revised
expectations. Timing of events contributed to much of the overage as the Golf Show moved
out of February to March and was replaced by Michigan Petroleum that moved from April to
March.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in consistent with the budget for the month. Spending on Audio/Visual
continues to come in much higher than originally budgeted and contributed to most of the gain
for March.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expneses came in at expected levels for the month.




DE VOS PLACE
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 03/31/05

----------------- CURRENT--=-~=-======mmcmcee commmemmcocemace¥TD-omoacmmeommomamooane
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 323,908 293,900 259,743 1,510,243 1,461,971 1,144,775
SERVICES INCOME 1,044 19,127 6,548 27,337 82,026 60,719
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 324,952 313,027 266,292 1,537,580 1,543,997 1,205,494
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 61,281 67,428 58,318 329,027 287,514 204,506
NOVELTY 868 0 720 4,923 10,350 11,673
ELECTRICAL 62,988 59,160 56,970 256,311 236,547 189,689
OTHER ANCILLARY 68,684 56,837 51,425 430,848 263,399 247,635
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 193,820 183,425 167,432 1,021,108 797,810 653,502
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 518,773 496,452 433,724 2,558,687 2,341,807 1,858,996
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 7,403 13,917 10,475 80,227 125,253 86,816
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 526,175 510,369 444,198 2,638,914 2,467,060 1,945,812
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 7,506 10,596 8,653 86,127 95,364 99,284
FINANCE 16,942 16,752 13,589 152,955 150,768 123,276
MARKETING 698 5,104 3,248 39,212 45,936 37,113
OPERATIONS 63,521 82,074 54,062 610,416 750,166 424,037
EVENT MANAGEMENT 75,197 73,470 50,195 550,514 664,230 397,120
BOX OFFICE 10,015 7,093 3,631 60,321 63,837 53,690
SALES 10,380 11,321 12,996 101,662 101,889 110,346
OVERHEAD 249,900 238,652 225,917 1,692,536 1,686,768 1,347,118
INDIRECT EXPENSES 434,160 445,062 372,290 3,293,744 3,558, 958 2,591,985
NET OPERATING INCOME 92,016 65,307 71,908 <654,830>  <1,091,898> <646,173>
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) 92,016 65,307 71,908 <654,830>  <1,091,898> <646,173>




DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 03/31/05

---------------- CURRENT---v====awm===-== ---ce==-c=------YEAR TO DATE-~-----~-==--
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 1,594 0 0 7,647 0 33,308
Changeover Setup Billed 1,945 0 5,497 9,002 0 8,643
Stagehands Billed 55,314 23,400 122,504 608,599 447,415 608,093
Security Billed 30,697 18,410 21,071 126,442 71,820 78,690
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 13,052 10,500 15,825 94,150 83,125 95,640
Box Office Billed 2,300 2,000 2,700 12,500 12,400 14,300
Ticketing Service Billed 23,506 24,800 18,654 110,765 110,100 146,994
Utilities Billed 0 0 750 0 0 1,575
City Police Fire Billed 3,290 3,630 3,990 23,507 7,780 18,684
Traffic Control Billed 6,100 9,425 7,107 20,736 23,200 27,350
EMT Medical Billed 4,088 3,772 4,781 22,663 18,413 21,872
Cleaning Billed 2,028 0 426 3,562 0 3,095
Insurance Billed 1,580 0 182 4,940 0 1,103
Telephone Billed 6,300 1,050 7,680 46,205 4,625 24,040
Damages Billed 75 0 0 350 0 2,976
Other Production Billed 1,159 0 9,187 45,224 0 26,972
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 153, 029 96,987 220,354 1,136,292 778,878 1,113,336
Advertising Expense 1,594 [ 0 7,773 0 31,728
Contracted Changeover Setup Expense 0 0 0 V] 0 1,274
Allocated Changeover & Setup Expense 0 0 [ 0 0 4,284
Stagehand Wages 51,284 22,698 124,383 557,514 433,993 588,770
Security Wages 4] 18,410 0 0 71,820 0
Contracted Security Expense 27,585 0 19,481 117,422 0 74,720
Ushers & T/T Wages 9,137 7,350 11,078 65,905 58,188 66,456
Ticket Sellexrs Wages 4,038 300 3,726 14,212 9,600 14,016
Ticket Service Charge Bxpense 1,374 9,920 2,497 26,014 43,403 41,595
Ticket Supplies 0 0 0 5,481 0 [+]
City Police Fire Expense 3,290 1,630 3,990 23,445 3,230 18,684
Traffic Control Expense 7,630 8,650 7,988 28,422 24,300 31,225
EMT Medical Expense <32> 3,772 3,481 18,576 18,263 16,643
Production Materials 0 ] 0 0 0 492
Cleaning Wages 0 4,530 0 0 34,055 14,146
Contracted Cleaning Expense 42,245 4} 26,821 174,466 0 110,389
Contracted Exhibit Expense 0 4] 3,000 o] 0 6,000
Insurance Expense 1,294 0 184 3,865 0 1,208
Allocated Telephone Expense 1,575 0 1,940 11,544 o 6,030
Damage Expense 0 ] 4] 0 0 2,875
Production Expense 970 0 5,237 54,318 0 22,084
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 151,985 77,860 213,806 1,108,956 696,852 1,052,618

NET SERVICE INCOME 1,044 19,127 6,548 27,337 82,026 60,719




DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 03/31/05

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & BQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

1,857,504
886,321
77,107

2,820,932

508,637
84,659
12,781

681,350

<350, 000>
1,302,067
1,236,267
<654,830>

2,820,932



DE VOS PLACE
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 03/31/05

----------------- CURRENT--=-ccrrmmmmmmemee mmmemcecmccccemomeaYTDemameceommcmmcaaaeae

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 55,371 59,280 51,454 509,910 533,520 490,948
Part-Time 16,373 13,167 14,241 92,681 118,503 93,064
Wages-Trade 85,976 93,547 136,934 815,299 841,923 789,963
Auto Allowance 1,971 ] 1,971 17,437 0 17,737
Auto Expense 150 2,121 150 1,350 19,089 1,350
Taxes & Benefits 41,799 43,818 50,761 365,958 394,362 333,413

Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <B81,624> <79,161> <154,586> <791,419> <712,449> <830,078>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 120,016 132,772 100,924 1,011,217 1,194,948 896,397
Contracted Security 23,810 19,000 17,798 180,738 171,000 114,214
Contracted Cleaning 4,619 0 951 10,326 0 951
Other Contracted Services 582 200 155 1,742 1,800 1,084
Travel & Entertainment 1,679 1,626 752 8,119 14,634 9,089
Corporate Travel 0 0 119 <221> 0 2,212
Meetings & Conventions 519 1,958 890 14,047 26,122 8,869
Dues & Subscriptions 0 417 0 2,407 3,753 4,643
Employee Training 625 833 0 7,646 7,497 0
Computer Expense 15,316 5,417 3,009 65,166 48,753 32,234
Professional Fees 2,160 2,625 2,650 27,013 23,625 42,197
Marketing & Advertising 689 2,467 3,489 25,349 22,203 42,184
Box Office Expenses <105> 0 <478> 452 0 931
Small Equipment 0 0 430 2,163 0 1,912
Trash Removal 35 3,000 2,241 15,632 27,000 8,554
Equipment Rental 960 500 1,301 9,108 4,500 7,914
Snow Removal 4] 0 0 0 0 481
BExterminating 0 500 0 10,269 4,500 1,125
Cleaning 0 0 0 0 6,000 0
Construction Costs 0 0 470 2,967 0 23,744
Repairs & Maintenance 4,721 21,721 1,599 139,761 195,489 28,748
Supplies 24,836 19,208 13,216 136,651 172,872 81,531
Bank Service Charges 1,834 750 1,667 9,439 6,750 8,400
Insurance 24,749 16,454 26,860 167,894 148, 086 119,473
Licenses & Fees 0 0 0 99 0 1,905
Printing & Stationary 0 1,125 0 1,646 10,125 1,910
Office Supplies 999 625 1,304 9,350 5,625 8,778
Postage 31 417 222 1,266 3,753 1,374
Parking Expense 1,452 1,000 2,191 12,502 9,000 17,245
Telephone Long Distance 7,786 6,000 7,706 54,350 54,000 64,966
Utilities 178,486 187,500 165,388 1,197,407 1,226,400 890,743
Base Fee 19,935 19,780 19,354 179,995 178,020 174,189

Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <1,575> <833> <1,920> <11,999> <7,497> <6,010>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 314,144 312,290 271,366 2,281,285 2,364,010 1,695,588
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 434,160 445,062 372,290 3,292,502 3,558,958 2,591,985

~)



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Box Office - Electronic Signage 14,000 14,000 Open
Spotlights 125,000 125,000 Open
Security System Upgrades 35,489 39,489 - Closed
Speaker System - Main Entrance 15,000 9,406 5,594 Closed
Total Arena 193,489 48,895 144,594
DeVos Place
Total DeVos Place - - -
Grand Total Capital Improvements 193,489 48,895 144,594
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2004
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,431,995 (1,122,117) 309,878 245,318
Benchmark 1,647,957 (1,388,942) 259,015 1,531
Excess (215,962) 266,825 50,863 243,787

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2004

Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 239,220 239,219 478,439 464,504

Incentive Fee

Revenue 4,651,761 3,467,864 8,119,625 7,412,186
Benchmark Revenue 4,465,338 3,246,912 7,712,250 6,716,238
Revenue Excess 186,423 220,952 407,375 695,948
Incentive Fee ** 37,285 44,190 81,475 139,190
Total SMG Management Fee 276,505 283,409 559914 603.694

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ended March 31, 2005

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions
Paragon Leather
Saigon Entertainment
Grinder Promotions

Total Accounts Receivable @ 3/31/05

117,036
284,668
31,632
49,630
176,645

185,250

26,740

5,736
1,696
5,002
2,286

886,321



VAN ANDEL

ARENA

GRAND RAPIDS

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Hank Abate

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item IV.b.i.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2005

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE

FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK ADMIN
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

LESS ALLOCATION FOR CAPITAL REPLACEMENT

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL

Comments:

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

92 21 13 17 (4)
487,498 120,654 608,152 709,200 (101,048)
904,904 244853 1,149,757 1,278,171 (128,414)
1,067,574 232879 1,300,453 1,535,524 (235,071)
1,972,478 477732 2,450,210 2,813,695 (363,485)
1,607,101 504450 2,201,551 1,985,000 216,551
3,579,579 1,072,182 4,651,761 4,798,695 (146,934)
91,626 27,485 119,111 107,510 (11.601)
139,668 47,142 186,810 193,611 6,801
166,050 53,450 219,500 229,064 9,564
964,503 206456 1,170,959 1,192,081 21,122
79,045 22,963 102,908 107,120 4212
91,626 18,470 110,096 113,597 3,501
33,168 9,847 43,015 36,941 (6.074)
1,019,197 248,170 1,267,367 1,303,597 36,230
2,585,783 633,983 3,219,766 3,283,521 63,755
993,797 438,199 1,431,996 1,515,174 (83,179)
993,797 438,199 1,431,995 1,615,174 (83,179)

The Van Andel Arena performed very well compared to budget for the month of
March with the NCAA Hockey Regional and 2 sold out Kenny Chesney concerts

contributing to most of the overage. With 6 strong concerts on the schedule for the
balance of the fiscal year, the Arena could make up some of the shortfall from the
first 3 quarters, however, still fall short of the original budget for the fiscal year,

provided these concerts continue to perform as well as expected.

General Mdnage




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2005, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH March March March
Actual Budget FY 2004
Number of Events 15 17 17
Attendance 91,752 112,000 97,500
Direct Event Income $220,608 $161,727 $222,467
Ancillary Income 238,055 201,403 210,731
Other Income 195,673 165,416 180,570
indirect Expenses (323,857) (273,002) (253,978)
Net Income $330,479 $255,544 $359,790
YTD YTD 2005 YTD 2005 YTD 2004
Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 92 99 103
Attendance 487,498 590,700 562,319
Direct Event income $904,904 $1,058,143 $893,889
Ancillary Income 1,067,574 1,301,610 1,205,294
Other income 1,607,101 1,488,744 1,612,752
Indirect Expenses (2,585,783) (2,464,518) (2,291,764)
Net Income $993,797 $1,383,979 $1,320,170

EVENT INCOME

Direct event income came in ahead of budget for the month due to the success of the NCAA
Hockey Regional, and the sold out Kenny Chesney (2 shows) and Josh Groban concerts.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in ahead of budget for the month due to the very strong food &
beverage and novelty per caps for the Kenny Chesney concert.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in higher than budget, however, consistent with revised expectations.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 03/31/05

----------------- CURRENT -~ - =~ =c==-==mcmc —ceccmmmoeomonme=YTDmmmmmmmmmccmnmmoooo o=
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 387,319 339,500 395,768 1,432,349 1,663,350 1,517,077
SERVICES INCOME <166,711> <177,773> <173,301> <527,445> <605,207> <623,188>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 220,608 161,727 222,467 904,904 1,058,143 893,889
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 199,340 173,816 175,933 886,073 1,081,008 1,030,917
NOVELTY 36,655 18,585 30,779 151,946 186,212 140,615
ELECTRICAL 0 0 0 600 0 0
OTHER ANCILLARY 2,060 9,002 4,020 28,955 34,390 33,762
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 238,055 201,403 210,731 1,067,574 1,301,610 1,205,294
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 458,663 363,130 433,199 1,972,478 2,359,753 2,099,183
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 195,673 165,416 180,570 1,607,101 1,488,744 1,512, 752
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 654,336 528,546 613,769 3,579,579 3,848,497 3,611,934
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 9,581 8,834 8,010 91,626 81,006 85,229
FINANCE 16,618 16,009 10,965 139,668 145,581 115,432
MARKETING 18,845 18,963 12,507 166,050 172,167 140,032
LUXURY SEATING 12,622 9,467 7,488 91,626 85,203 64,430
OPERATIONS 111,316 99,089 87,755 964,503 894,801 808, 961
BOX OFFICE 13,545 8,928 7,480 79,945 80,352 76,239
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 4,014 3,079 2,925 33,168 27,711 30,293
OVERHEAD 137,316 108,633 116,848 1,019,197 977,697 971,148
INDIRECT EXPENSES 323,857 273,002 253,978 2,585,783 2,464,518 2,291,764
NET OPERATING INCOME 330,479 255,544 359,790 993,797 1,383,979 1,320,170
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) 330,479 255,544 159,790 993,797 1,383,979 1,320,170




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 03/31/05

---------------- CURRENT------=----=====- --=-c---------YEAR TO DATE------------~
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 11,981 0 73,458 299,836 29,000 246,774
Sponsorship Income 5,000 [ 0 25,000 0 0
Labor Billed 2,295 1,080 1,215 14,768 13,345 11,093
Changeover Setup Billed 12,058 8,100 8,864 96,244 91,000 80,856
Stagehands Billed 57,152 35,100 94,536 341,667 391,900 417,714
Security Billed 23,672 12,450 8,556 128,046 129,300 106,540
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 12,899 10,450 7,364 80,841 95,450 82,542
Box Office Billed 1,462 800 903 10,761 9,750 6,515
Ticketing Service Billed 9,269 16,000 25,990 101,234 181,850 163,623
Utilities Billed 1,300 0 3,600 8,588 0 5,600
City Police Fire Billed 1,318 1,680 1,862 8,992 10,200 7,396
EMT Medical Billed 3,037 1,200 2,965 20,427 16,000 14,797
Cleaning Billed 10,592 7,200 6,202 68,587 88,100 67,765
Group Sales Commissions Billed 52 0 1,191 4,393 0 2,248
Telephone Billed 2,085 2,600 4,970 20,690 24,760 28,830
Damages Billed 0 0 0 0 0 350
Other Production Billed 57,376 8,000 26,413 172,421 151,800 239,301
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 211,547 104,660 268,089 1,402,494 1,232,455 1,481,940
Advertising Expense 45,728 35,000 106,766 335,246 64,000 283,209
Sponsorship Expenses 3,600 0 0 13,600 0 0
Labor Wages 1,951 918 1,033 12,362 11,802 9,888
Contracted Changeover Setup Expense 41,044 41,400 44,996 224,625 213,854 212,827
Stagehand Wages 53,427 41,219 91,171 330,485 426,973 426,528
Contracted Security Expense 43,288 31,500 30,017 220,520 199,890 205,678
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense 42,740 44,600 40,259 212,876 231,910 216,586
Ticket Sellers Wages 1,243 0 768 9,147 0 5,208
Ticket Sellers P/R Taxes Bene 0 0 0 0 0 329
Ticket Service Charge Expense 12,489 23,250 29,335 94,214 212,250 158,777
City Police Fire Expense 2,185 1,680 1,862 11,109 13,286 9,396
EMT Medical Expense 5,577 5,993 5,541 24,077 31,073 25,799
Contracted Cleaning Expense 51,478 48,345 36,549 223,655 261,861 214,708
Insurance Expense 0 0 4,014 0 0 30,542
Allocated Telephone Expense 626 528 1,528 6,087 6,463 9,531
Production Expense 72,884 8,000 47,551 211,935 164,300 296,124
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 378,258 282,433 441,389 1,929,939 1,837,662 2,105,129

NET SERVICE INCOME <166, 711> <177,773> <173,301> <527,445> <605,207> <623,188>




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 03/31/05

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY

FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

<

4,967,427
1,173,525
124,770

6,265,721

=znossss=s

1,849,335
748,160
595,402

2,064,871

1,950,000>
500,788

1,463,368
993,797



Salaries Administration
parc-Time

Wages-Trade

Wages-Trade Part-Time

Auto Allowance

Auto Expense

Taxes & Benefits

Less: Allocation/Reimbursement

TOTAL LABOR COSTS

Contracted Security
Contracted Cleaning
Other Contracted Services
Travel & Entertainment
Corporate Travel
Meetings & Conventions
Dues & Subscriptions
Employee Training
Computer Expense
Professional Fees
Marketing & Advertising
Box Office Expenses
Small Equipment

Trash Removal
Equipment Rental
Landscaping
Exterminating
Cleaning

Repairs & Maintenance
Supplies

Bank Service Charges
Rent Expense

Insurance

Licenses & Fees
Printing & Stationary
Office Supplies
Postage

Parking Expense
Telephone Long Distance
Utilities

Base Fee

Common Area Expense

Less: Allocated/Reimbursement

TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES

TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES

VAN ANDEL ARENA

INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 03/31/05

----------------- CURRENT-------=wemmmcecun ccwocrmnmmcennoee oo YTD- - mmmemmmmmmm oo e
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
54,730 56,102 43,104 503,857 504,918 435,622
8,987 3,333 10,071 53,610 29,997 50,425
82,098 80,733 108,458 600,780 726,597 642,463
0 0 0 5,219 0 0
577 0 577 5,194 0 5,194
300 985 300 2,700 8,865 2,700
43,590 34,180 42,050 323,469 307,620 289,484
<76,600> <70,716> <107,700> <506,332> <636,444> <570,215>
113,681 104,617 96,859 988,497 941,553 855,673
19,197 19,000 18,671 171,197 171,000 182,380
2,098 2,292 2,098 20,885 20,628 25,216
314 300 314 3,481 2,700 2,861
2,823 558 816 7,277 5,022 6,844
0 625 0 0 5,625 o]
0 350 0 5,139 10,650 1,071
0 208 87 7,346 1,872 5,791
625 750 <2,050> 825 6,750 250
10,103 5,417 3,436 62,286 48,753 44,372
1,875 2,375 3,146 21,531 21,375 24,137
7,405 7,500 2,289 54,875 67,500 41,331
140 0 <214> <238> 0 <451>
381 0 795 4,563 0 3,389
2,381 1,250 4,320 16,138 11,250 15,377
1,102 1,300 1,444 11,107 11,700 10,296
0 292 0 0 2,628 0
248 333 248 2,228 2,997 1,980
0 900 0 4,050 8,100 9,083
11,468 9,333 1,123 116,902 83,997 53,410
17,467 12,841 9,894 121,993 115,569 82,207
822 1,000 636 6,036 9,000 6,877
0 0 [¢] 0 [ 307
18,294 13,269 19,176 115,905 119,421 102,014
0 1] 0 0 0 72
5,342 1,750 0 6,029 15,750 0
1,393 1,000 832 12,225 9,000 8,210
1,291 1,000 207 8,497 9,000 10,132
o] 1,500 2,066 19,137 13,500 17,690
4,826 3,000 6,634 56,293 27,000 47,253
84,656 63,567 65,919 598,070 572,103 594,902
19,935 19,780 19,354 178,834 178,020 174,189
<3,385> <2,730> <2,5%94> «29,237=> <24,570> <24,967>
<626> <375> <1,528> <6,087= <3,375> <10,133>
210,176 168,385 157,119 1,597,286 1,522,965 1,436,091
323,857 273,002 253,978 2,585,783 2,464,518 2,291,764




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Box Office - Electronic Signage 14,000 14,000 Open
Spotlights 125,000 125,000 Open
Security System Upgrades 39,489 39,489 - Closed
Speaker System - Main Entrance 15,000 9,406 5,594 Closed
Total Arena 193,489 48,895 144,594
DeVos Place
Total DeVos Place - - -
Grand Total Capital Improvements 193,489 48,895 144,594
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2004
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,431,995 (1,122,117) 309,878 245,318
Benchmark 1,647,957 (1,388,942) 259,015 1,531
Excess (215,962) 266,825 50,863 243,787
Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2004
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 239,220 239,219 478,439 464,504
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,651,761 3,467,864 8,119,625 7,412,186
Benchmark Revenue 4,465,338 3,246,912 7,712,250 6,716,238
Revenue Excess 186,423 220,952 407,375 695,948
Incentive Fee ** 37,285 44,190 81,475 139,190
Total SMG Management Fee 276,505 283.409 559,914 603.694

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending March 31, 2005

Current - Under 30 Days

Food & Beverage 408,976

Ticketing 302,341

Merchandise 43,340

Operating 201,475
Over 30 Days 84,996
Over 60 Days 48,745
Over 90 Days

Paid 4/14/05 54,000

Time Out for Women 29,652

Total Accounts Receivable @ 3/31/05 1,173,525



:;1,:;,’;: Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority Item IV.b.ii.

Accrual Basis Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2005
Mar 31, 05
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1020 - Cash - Construction - Max Saver 1,230,872.52
1030 - Cash - Construction 604,468.52
1050 - Operations - Cash 1,162,431.82
8991 - Cash - Retainage 331,937.04
Total Checking/Savings 3,329,709.90
Other Current Assets
1070 - Kent County - Operating 5,006,964.16
1080 - Kent County - Capital Replcmnt 11,048,749.07
Total Other Current Assets 16,055,713.23
Total Current Assets 19,385,423.13
Fixed Assets
Vehicles 23,470.00
Total Fixed Assets 23,470.00
TOTAL ASSETS 19,408,893.13
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable 209,337.60
Total Accounts Payable 209,337.60

Other Current Liabilities

2200 - Accrued Expenses 124,447.00

9892 - Retainage Payable 331,937.04

Total Other Current Liabilities 456,384.04

Total Current Liabilities 665,721.64

Totat Liabilities 665,721.64
Equity

3000 - Opening Bal Equity 37,652,992.39

Net Income -18,909,820.90

Total Equity 18,743,171.49

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 19,408,893.13

Note: Negative net income a result of construction expenditures.
These will be capitalized at year end and will reverse the
negative net income reported.



2:14PM
04/13/06

Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactions

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Reconciliation Detail

1020 - Cash - Construction - Max Saver, Period Ending 03/31/2005

Checks and Payments - 1 item

Total Checks and Payments

Deposits and Credits - 1 item

Total Deposits and Credits

Total Cleared Transactions

Cleared Balance

Register Balance as of 03/31/2005

Ending Balance

Type Date Description Cir Amount Balance -
]
2,427,676.98
Transfer  03/09/2005 Transfer to Construction v -1,200,000.00 -1,200,000.00
-1,200,000.00 -1,200,000.00
Deposit 03/31/2005 Interest v 3,296.54 3,296.54
3,296.54 3,296.54
-1,196,703.46 -1,196,703.46
-1,196,703.46 1,230,872.52
-1,196,703.46 1,230,872.52
-1,196,703.46 1,230,872.62




2:26 PM

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

04/13/06
Reconciliation Detail
1030 - Cash - Construction, Period Ending 03/31/2005
Type Date Num Name/Description Cir Amount Balance
Beginning Balance 842,461.62
Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 11 items
Bil Pmt -Check  02/28/2005 2069 Progressive AE v -17,237.35 -17,237.35
Bill Pmt -Check  02/28/2005 2070 SMG - Philadeiphia v -100,000.00 -117,237.35
Bill Pmt -Check  02/28/2005 2067 Materials Testing Consultants Inc v 57400 -117,811.35
Bill Pmt -Check  02/28/2005 2068 Nextel Communications v -68.81 -117,880.16
Bill Pmt -Check  03/14/2005 2078 Robert Duff Consulting Inc v -4,298.75 -122,178.91
Bill Pmt -Check  03/14/2005 2077 Midstate Securitty v -36,945.59 -1569,124.50
Bill Pmt-Check  03/14/2005 2074 Feyen-Zylistra Inc v -45,8565.71 -204,980.21
Bill Pmt -Check  03/14/2005 2073 Erhardt Construction v -2,089.47 -207,069.68
Bill Pmt -Check  03/14/2005 2072 Erhardt-Hunt/Joint Venture v -1,162,988.00 -1,370,057.68
Bill Pmt -Check  03/14/2005 2071 Dale H. Sommers ¥ -14,000.00 -1,384,057.68
Bill Pmt -Check  03/14/2005 2075 GR-KC C/AA Retainage Account v -56,358.00 -1,440,415.68
Total Checks and Payments -1,440,41568 -1,440,415.68
Deposits and Credits - 3 items
Deposit 03/04/2005 Sale of Used Fire Extinguishers v 600.00 600.00
Transfer 03/09/2005 Transfer from Max Saver v 1,200,000.00 1,200,600.00
Deposit 03/31/2005 Interest v 248564 1,203,085.64
Total Deposits and Credits 1,203,085.64  1,203,085.64
Total Cleared Transactions -237,330.04  -237,330.04
Cleared Balance -237,330.04 605,131.58
Uncleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 2 items
Bill Pmt -Check  03/14/2005 2076 Jenry G Fellinger -600.00 -600.00
Bill Pmt -Check  03/28/2005 2079 Nextel Communications -63.06 -663.06
Total Checks and Payments -663.06 -663.06
Total Uncleared Transactions -663.06 -663.06
Register Balance as of 03/31/2005 -237,993.10 604,468.52
New Transactions
Checks and Payments - § items
Bill Pmt -Check  04/14/2005 2082 Global Computer Supplies -9,782.02 -9,782.02
Bill Pmt -Check  04/14/2005 2083 Midwest Food Equipment Service, Inc. -146.50 -9,928.52
Bill Pmt -Check  04/14/2005 2084 Nextel Communications -62.64 -9,991.16
Bill Pmt -Check  04/14/2005 2080 Custer Workplace Interiors -1,265.00 -11,256.1€
Bill Pmt -Check  04/14/2005 2081 Dale H. Sommers -12,860.00 -24,216.1€
Total Checks and Payments -24216.16 -24,216.1€
Total New Transactions -24,216.16 -24,216.1€
Ending Balance -262,209.26 580,262.36




3:11PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
04/13/05 Reconciliation Detail
1060 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 03/31/2006
Type Date Num Name Memo Cir
Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 19 items
Bill Pmt -Check  2/28/2005 6084 ICMA Retirement Corp... X
Bill Pmt -Check  2/28/2005 6085 McConomy Properties ... X
Bill Pmt -Check  2/28/2005 6086 Priority Health X
Bill Pmt -Check  2/28/2005 6083 ICMA Retirement Corp... X
Bill Pmt -Check  2/28/2005 6082 Dickinson Wright PLLC X
Bill Pmt -Check  2/28/2005 6081 Consumers Energy X
Check 3/4/2005 10098  Susan M. Waddell X
Check 3/4/2005 10098  Susan M. Waddell X
Bili Pmt -Check  3/14/2005 6089 Consumers Energy X
Bill Pmt -Check  3/14/2005 6090 Grand Rapids City Tre... X
Bill Pmt -Check  3/14/2005 6091 ICMA Retirement Corp... X
Bill Pmt -Check  3/14/2005 Kent Count Dept of Pu... X
Bill Pmt -Check  3/14/2005 6094 Rapid Hot Coffee Service X
Bill Pmt -Check  3/14/2005 6087 Active Plastics, Inc. X
Bill Pmt -Check  3/14/2005 6088 Beene Garter LLP X
Bill Pmt -Check  3/14/2005 6092 ICMA Retirement Corp... X
Check 3/18/2005 10099  Susan M. Waddell X
Check 3/18/2005 10099  Susan M. Waddell X
Bill Pmt -Check  3/28/2005 6095 Consumers Energy X

Total Checks and Payments

Deposits and Credits - 3 items
Deposit 3/4/2005 Feb 05 parking rev (VAA-$9,018; DVP-$37,400) X
Deposit 3/18/2005 Excess cash flow to CAA for DVP X
Deposit 3/31/2005 Interest X

Total Deposits and Credits

Total Cleared Transactions
Cleared Balance
Uncleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 4 items
Bill Pmt -Check  3/28/2005 6097 ICMA Retirement Corp...
Bill Pmt -Check  3/28/2005 6098 ICMA Retirement Corp...
Bill Pmt -Check  3/28/2005 6099 Priority Health
Bill Pmt -Check  3/28/2005 6096 Dickinson Wright PLLC

Total Checks and Payments

Total Uncleared Transactions

Register Balance as of 03/31/2005

New Transactions

Checks and Payments - 9 items

Check 4/1/2005 10100  Susan M. Waddell
Check 4/1/2005 10100  Susan M. Waddell
Bill Pmt -Check  4/14/2005 6100 Consumers Energy
Bili Pmt -Check  4/14/2005 6101 DTE Energy
Bili Pmt -Check  4/14/2005 6102 Grand Rapids City Tre...
Bill Pmt -Check  4/14/2005 6103 ICMA Retirement Corp...
Bill Pmt -Check  4/14/2005 6104 ICMA Retirement Corp...
Bill Pmt -Check  4/14/2005 6105 Kent Count Dept of Pu...
Bill Pmt -Check  4/14/2005 6106 Rapid Hot Coffee Service

Total Checks and Payments

Deposits and Credits - 1 item
4/1/2005

Total Deposits and Credits

Deposit Arena parking revenue - March 05

Total New Transactions

Ending Balance

Amount Batlance
1,102,760.00
-50.00 -50.00
-1,075.00 -1,125.00
-398.73 -1,523.73
-250.92 -1,774.65
-170.50 -1,945.15
-72,245.91 -74,191.06
-1,383.93 -75,574.99
-716257 -76,337.56
-32,162.53 -108,500.09
-11,567.78 -120,067.87
-250.92 -120,318.79
-153,115.20 -273,433.99
-24.95 -273,458.94
-38.00 -273,496.94
-237.00 -273,733.94
-50.00 -273,783.94
-1,383.93 -275,167.87
81424 -275,982.11
-61,666.75 -337,648.86
-337,648.86 -337,648.86
46,418.00 46,418.00
350,000.00 396,418.00
2,330.83 398,748.83
398,748.83 398,748.83
61,099.97 61,099.97
61,099.97 1,163,859.97
-250.92 -250.92
-50.00 -300.92
-398.73 -699.65
-728.50 -1,428.15
-1,428.15 -1,428.15
-1,428.15 -1,428.15
59,671.82 1,162,431.82
-754.30 -754.30
-1,383.93 -2,138.23
-35,039.72 -37,177.85
-602.96 -37,780.91
-32,748.25 -70,529.16
-250.92 -70,780.08
-50.00 -70,830.08
-154,858.84 -225,688.92
-27.68 -225,716.60
-225,716.60 -225,716.60
9,018.00 9,018.00
9,018.00 9,018.00
-216,698.60 -216,698.60
-167,026.78 945,733.22




2:35 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

04/13/05 Reconciliation Detail
9991 - Cash - Retainage, Period Ending 03/31/2005

Type Date Num Name Memo Cir Amount Balance
Beginning Balance 1,803,666.79
Cleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 1 item

Bill Pmt -Check 3/14/2005 1204 Erhardt-Hunt/Joint V... X -1,630,998.00 -1,630,998.00
Total Checks and Payments -1,630,998.00 -1,630,998.00
Deposits and Credits - 2 items

Deposit 3/15/2005 Deposit X 56,358.00 56,358.00

Deposit 3/31/2005 Interest X 2,910.25 59,268.25
Total Deposits and Credits 59,268.25 59,268.25

Total Cleared Transactions -1,5671,729.75 -1,571,729.75

Cleared Balance -1,671,729.75 331,937.04

Uncleared Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 1 item

Deposit 12/14/2004 Deposit 0.00

Total Deposits and Credits 0.00 0.00

Total Uncleared Transactions 0.00 0.00
Register Balance as of 03/31/2005 -1,571,729.75 331,937.04
Ending Balance -1,671,728.76 331,837.04




2:50 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

04/13/06 Reconciliation Detail
1070 - Kent County - Operating, Period Ending 02/28/2005

Type Date Num Memo ﬂ Amount Balance
Beginning Balance 2,002,958.86
Cleared Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 2 items
Deposit 2/1/2005 Interest X 4,005.30 4,005.30
Transfer 2/10/2005 From Cap Rpicmnt to Operating X 3,000,000.00 3,004,005.30
Total Deposits and Credits 3,004,005.30 3,004,005.30
Total Cleared Transactions 3,004,005.30 3,004,005.30
Cleared Balance 3,004,005.30 5,006,964.16
Register Balance as of 02/28/2005 3,004,005.30 5,006,964.16
Ending Balance 3,004,006.30 5,006,964.16




2:47 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
04/13/06 Reconciliation Detail
1080 - Kent County - Capital Replcmnt, Period End 02/28/2006
Type Date Num Memo Cir Amount Balance
Beginning Balance 14,020,712.02
Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 1 item
Transfer 2/10/2005 From Cap Rpicmnt to Operating X -3,000,000.00 -3,000,000.00
Total Checks and Payments -3,000,000.00 -3,000,000.00
Deposits and Credits - 1 item
Deposit 2/1/2005 Interest X 28,037.05 28,037.05
Total Deposits and Credits 28,037.05 28,037.05
Total Cleared Transactions -2,971,962.95 -2,971,962.95
Cleared Balance -2,971,962.95 11,048,749.07
Register Balance as of 01/31/2005 -2,971,862.95 11,048,749.07
Ending Balance -2,971,962.95 11,048,749.07




4:17 PM

04/20/08
Accrual Basis

Profit & Loss
July 2004 through March 2005

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Income

4030 - Federal Support

4040 - Private Support

4500 - Interest on Investments
4530 - Facility Operations
4640 - Land Lease

4646 - Parking Revenues

4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Income
Expense

5000 - Architectural and Engineering
6010 - Construction Material Testing
§020 - Construction in Progress-GMP
8000 - Professional Services

6050 - Project Mgt/Owner’s Rep
6060 - Other Contractual Services
60656 - Pedestrian Safety

6068 - Parking Management

6070 - Facility Management Fees
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
8200 - Capital Replacement Projects
6300 - Utilities Expense

6410 - Interest & Paying Agent Fees
8000 - Personal Services

Total Expense

Net Income

Jul ‘04 - Mar 05

3,528,884.00
2,204,000.00
302,435.28
2,300,000.00
71,8687.00
355,984.00
13,848.00

8,777,018.28

4,142,723.63
64,760.62
19,096,233.00
52,515.17
173,802.50
1,864,502.30
14,218.71
128,507.00
139,190.00
16,483.34
139,133.25
1,781,018.51
750.00
52,991.15

27,686,839.18
-18,909,820.80



m’om Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Accrual Basis Profit & Loss by Fund
July 2004 through March 2005

Convention Center Admin & Capital Replacement

(Construction) (Operations) TOTAL
income
4030 - Federal Support 3,528,884.00 0.00 3,528,884.00
4040 - Private Support 2,204,000.00 0.00 2,204,000.00
4500 - Interest on Investments 273,502.16 28,933.12 302,435.28
4530 - Facility Operations 0.00 2,300,000.00 2,300,000.00
4540 - Land Lease 0.00 71,867.00 71,867.00
4545 - Parking Revenues 0.00 355,984.00 355,984.00
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue 600.00 13,248.00 13,848.00
Total Income 6,006,986.16 2,770,032.12 8,777,018.28
Expense
5000 - Architectural and Engineering 4,142,723.63 0.00 4,142,723.63
§010 - Construction Material Testing 64,760.62 0.00 64,760.62
65020 - Construction in Progress-GMP 19,096,233.00 0.00 19,096,233.00
6000 - Professional Services 350.00 52,165.17 52,515.17
6050 - Project Mgt/Owner's Rep 173,802.50 0.00 173,802.50
6060 - Other Contractual Services 1,863,670.82 20,831.48 1,884,502.30
6065 - Pedestrian Safety 0.00 14,218.71 14,218.71
6068 - Parking Management 0.00 128,507.00 128,507.00
6070 - Facility Management Fees 0.00 139,190.00 139,180.00
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses 4,260.50 12,232.84 16,493.34
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects 0.00 139,133.256 139,133.25
6300 - Utilities Expense 28,626.27 1,752,392.24 1,781,018.51
6410 - Interest & Paying Agent Fees 0.00 750.00 750.00
8000 - Personal Services 0.00 52,991.15 52,991.15
Total Expense 25,374,427.34 2,312,411.84 27,686,839.18
Net Income -19,367,441.18 467,620.28 -18,909,820.90




4:29 PM
04/20/06
Accrual

income

4030 - Federal Support

4040 - Private Support

4500 - Interest on Investments
4530 - Facility Operations

4540 - Land Lease

4545 - Parking Revenues
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Income

Expense

5000 - Architectural and Engineering
5010 - Construction Material Testing
§020 - Construction in Progress-GMP
6000 - Professional Services

6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
6040 - Legal Services

Total 6000 - Professional Services

6050 - Project Mgt/Owner’s Rep

6080 - Other Contractual Services
6085 - Pedestrian Safety

6068 - Parking Management

6070 - Facility Management Fees

6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees

6020 - Computer Services

6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability
6110 - Meeting Expense

6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
6300 - Utilities Expense

6301 - Electricity

6310 - Natural Gas

6410 - Interest & Paying Agent Fees

6120 - Supplies

6130 - Postage/Express
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses - Other
Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6320 - Steam

6330 - Telephone
6340 - Water & Sewer
Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
July 2004 through March 2005

-10 -

Admin & Capital Replacement
{Operations)
Jul ‘04 - Mar 05 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

0.00

0.00
28,933.12 16,498.00 12,435.12 175.37%
2,300,000.00 1,807,263.00 492,737.00 127.26%
71,867.00 92,250.00 -20,383.00 77.91%
355,984.00 484,875.00 -128,891.00 73.42%
13,248.00 11,250.00 1,998.00 117.76%
2,770,032.12 2,412,136.00 357,896.12 114.84%

0.00

0.00

0.00
41,086.86 46,502.00 5,415.14 88.36%
11,078.31 29,998.00 -18,919.69 36.93%
52,165.17 76,500.00 -24,334.83 68.19%

0.00

20,831.48
14,218.71 64,502.00 -50,283.29 22.04%
128,507.00 192,760.00 -64,253.00 66.67%

139,190.00

0.00

349.00
9,561.74 4,565.00 4,996.74 209.46%
572.76 602.00 -29.24 95.14%
1,465.97 827.00 638.97 177.26%

170.00

113.37
12,232.84 5,994.00 6,238.84 204.09%
139,133.25 145,116.00 -5,982.75 95.88%
830,521.00 808,498.00 22,023.00 102.72%
17,989.80 56,250.00 -38,260.20 31.98%
814,265.92 747,786.00 66,479.92 108.89%

0.00
89,615.52 100,052.00 -10,436.48 89.57%
1,752,392.24 1,712,586.00 39,806.24 102.32%

750.00



:f;g 1';°'V5' Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Accrual Basis Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
July 2004 through March 2005

Admin & Capital Replacement
{Operations)
Jul ‘04 - Mar 06 w $ Over Budget % of

8000 - Personal Services

8001 - Employee Wages 38,228.00 40,752.00 -2,524.00 93.81%
8030 - Employee Benefits 12,672.15 14,202.00 -1,529.85 89.23%
8000 - Personal Services - Other 2,091.00
Total 8000 - Personal Services 52,991.15 54,954.00 -1,962.85 96.43%
Total Expense 2,312,411.84 2,252,412.00 59,999.84 102.66%
Net Income 457,620.28 169,724.00 297,896.28 286.561%

-11 -



Item IV.b.iii.

Client Authotization to Bind Coverage

After careful consideration of your proposal dated April 7, 2005, we accept or reject your insurance program
for the following coverages as indicated below:

Not Not

Further, we accept your proposal with the following changes: Check here if “none”

It is understood this proposal provides only a summary of the details; the policies will contain the actual
coverages.

We confirm the values, schedules, and other data contained in the proposal are from our records and
acknowledge it is our responsibility to see that they are maintained accurately.

Please provide us with a binder(s) and invoice(s) for the coverages agreed upon at your earliest convenience.

Brenda Theisen Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena
Authority

A

Agent Signature ent Sign! ture\ SHeven R H €eacoc)t

A_1%-085

Date Date

26



COUNT
-
April 14,2005 - KENT

Mr. Bob White
Finance Director

Y ICHIG r\\\"a

County of Kent
. FISCAL SERVICES
RE: Convention/Arena Authority County Administration Building
Directors & Officers Liability Insurance Renewal 300 Monroe Avenue, N.W.
Effective Date: April 25, 2005 Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503-2221

Phone (616) 336-2517
Attached are the renewal proposals for the Directors and Officers liability insurance. =~ Fax (616) 336-3598

Policy History

Year Limit Deductible Premium
2000 $10,000,000 $5,000 $13,500
2001 $10,000.000 $5,000 $14,850
2002 $10,000,000 $15,000 $22,000
2003 $10,000,000 $15,000 $23,750
2004 $ 5,000,000 $15,000 $13,200
Renewal $ 5,000,000 $15,000 $10,268
Coverage

Claims made policy

For Wrongful Acts, Employment Practices, Personal Injury and Publishers Liability
Certified Acts of Terrorism included

Defense costs included in limit of liability

Coverage extended to spouses of the insured.

Proposals
Incumbent - Chubb Insurance, quoted $13,200.

Alternative - St. Paul/Travelers Insurance Company quoted $10,268.

Recommendation
The St. Paul/Travelers proposal for $10,268 is recommended.
e The proposal does include an Americans with Disability Act (ADA) exclusion endorsement.
This was clarified with the broker. It was explained that the policy will respond and defend the
Authority for ADA claims. However, the policy will not pay for ADA modifications to the
buildings.
e Also, St. Paul Travelers has agreed to pick up coverage from 4-25-00 providing the Authorlty
did not have prior knowledge of the claims.

Let me knoWou have any questions.
L.y

e

Risk Coordinator
cc Sue Waddell Steve Duarte
Convention/Arena Authority Deputy Director of Fiscal Services

Robert J. White

Director



Grand Rapids-Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

300 Monroe Avenue NW
Grand Rapids, MI 49503

DIRECTORS & OFFICERS LIABILITY
4-25-05 TO 4-25-06

Date Presented:
April 7, 2005

Ptesented By:
Brenda Theisen
Brenda_Theisen@ajg.com

@
V.

Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. of Michigan, Inc.
The Waters Building, 161 Ottawa, N.W., Suite 112, Grand Rapids, MI 49503
(616) 233-0910

Www.ajg.com

Copyright Arthut J. Gallagher & Co., 2005



Directors and Officers Liability

Chubb / Federal Insurance Company Limit of Liability
Each Loss $ 5,000,000
Each Policy Year $ 5,000,000
Deductible — Each Claim $ 15,000
Coverage Form Claims Made
Pending or Prior Date: 4-25-00
Extended Reporting: 1 Year is available for 75% of the total

annual premium.

Coverage A, Directors and Officers Liability, pays on behalf of the Directors and Officers for losses arising
from any claim by reason of any wrongful act.

Coverage B, Corporate Reimbursement, pays on behalf of the company for losses arising from any claim by
reason of any wrongful act, but only when the company is required or permitted to Indemnify the Directors
and Officers.

Speclal Conditions / Notable Exclusions:
Defense Costs ate included in the Limits of Liability.
Worldwide coverage tertitory.
Antitrust Exclusion
Breach of Written Employment Contract Exclusin
Notice of Loss Control Setvices



Directors and Officers Liability

Travelers Casualty & Sutety Limit of Liability
Limit of Liability Inclusive of Defense Expenses) $ 5,000,000
Total Retention Indemnified Loss $ 15,000
Coverage Form Claims Made
Pending and Prior Litigation Date: 4-25-00

Discovery Period: 365 Days optional at 75%

Coverage A, Directors and Officers Liability, pays on behalf of the Directors and Officers for losses arising
from any claim by reason of any wrongful act.

Coverage B, Corporate Reimbursement, pays on behalf of the company for losses atising from any claim by
reason of any wrongful act, but only when the company is required or permitted to Indemnify the Directors
and Officers.

Speclal Conditions / Notable Exclusions:
Defense Costs are included in the Limits of Liability.
Michigan Amendatory
Nuclear Broad Form Exclusion
ADA Exclusion Endotsement
Deletion of Amended Operation of Retention Wording
Terrotism Disclosure Notice

21



Obtaining a comprehensive and competitively priced program of insurance in the marketplace requires more
than access to the market. Past experience and credibility with markets are the foundation of a successful
campaign for your company. Complete and accurate submissions, with detailed specifications, are essential.

Market Review

Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. made a complete and personal presentation to each company contacted.

Carrier’s Position

Insurance Carrier Coverage(s) (Quoted/Declined, Reason)
Chubb / Federal Insurance Company | Directors & Quoted
Officers
St. Paul Travelers Directors & Quoted
Officers
Market Premium Summary
Coverage(s) Chubb Chubb St. Paul
Expiring Renewal Travelers
Quotation
Directors & Officers Liability $13,200 $13,200 $10,268
Grand Total $13,200 $13,200 $10,268




Proposed Carrier Ratings and Admitted Status

Proposed Carrier(s) AM. Best’s Rating | Admitted / Non-Admitted
4/4/05

Chubb A++ XV Admitted

Travelers Casualty & Surety Co. A+ XV Admitted

If the above indicates coverage is placed with a Non-Admitted Carrier, the carrier is doing business in the
state as a surplus lines or non-admitted carrier. As such, this catrier is not subject to the same regulations
which apply to an admitted carrier nor do they participate in any insurance guarantee fund applicable in that
state.

Guide to Best Ratings

Rating Levels and Categorics
Level Category Level Category Level Category
A+e At .. Superior B, B Fair D Poor
AAne. Excellent C++,C+......... Marginal E .. Under Regulatory Supervision
B++,B+......... Very Good [ o3 o2 Weak Forereerecerernsonsess Rating Suspended
S Rating Suspended
Financial Size Categories
(In $000 of Reported Policyholders’ Surplus Plus Conditional Reserve Funds)
FSC | Upto 1,000 FSC IX 250,000 to 500,000
FSC II 1,000 to 2,000 FSC X 500,000 to 750,000
FSC il 2000 to 5,000 FSC Xl 750,000 to 1,000,000
FSC v 5000 to 10,000 FSC Xil 1,000,000 to 1,250,000
FSC Vv 10000 to 25,000 FSC Xl 1,250,000 to 1,500,000
FSC Vi 25,000 to 50,000 FSC XIv 1,500,000 to 2,000,000
FSC Vi 50,000 to 100,000 FSC XV 2,000,000 ormore
FSC Vil 100,000 to 250,000

published annually by A.M. Best Company, Inc., presents comprehensive reports
on the financial position, history, and transactions of insurance companies operating in the United States and
Canada. Companies licensed to do business in the United States are assigned a Best’s Rating which attempts
to measure the comparative position of the company or association against industry averages.

Copies of the Best’s Insurance Reports on the insutance companies are available upon your request.

Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. uses A.M. Best & Co.’s rating services to evaluate the financial condition of
insurers whose policies we propose to deliver. The rating of the catrier and the year of publication of that
rating are indicated. Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. makes no representations and warranties concerning the
solvency of any carrier, nor does it make any representation or watranty concetning the rating of the carrier
which may change.



April 13, 2005

Mr. Phil Van Dyke, Risk Coordinator
Fiscal Services Department

County of Kent

300 Monroe Ave, NW

6rand Rapids, MI 49503

Re: GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
(Director's & Officers Proposal 4-25-05 To 4-25-06)

Dear Phil:

In answer to your questions regarding the St Paul Travelers proposal for Directors
& Officers Liability coverage:

1) This policy will respond and defend discrimination issues; however, the ADA
Exclusion endorsement is to make clear that St Paul Travelers will not pay
for modifications to the facilities (i.e. build a ramp or other
accommodations). The fact that we have modern facilities, here; this should
not be an issue. General Liability excludes discrimination coverage.

2) The 'Deletion of Amended Operations of Retention Wording' is a complicated
way of clarifying that the retention ($15,000) will apply to ALL claims.

3) The Terrorism Disclosure Notice is attached and includes coverage for
Certified Acts of Terrorism without a separate premium charge; the
premium is imbedded in overall premium and cannot be excluded.

4) St Paul Travelers intention is to of fer Continuity of Coverage and I have this
in writing from the underwriter that their policy will show the 4-25-00
Pending and Prior Litigation Date as does your expiring Chubb policy. Copy of
endorsement form also attached.

The interpretation of the conditions of the policy are general and would be subjéc‘r
to further scrutiny in the event of a claim, which may or may not apply as outlined

above or affected by other terms and conditions outlined in the policy.

Sincerely,

Brenda L. Theisen, AIM, CRM
Senior Account Executive



STPAUL
TRAVELERS

IMPORTANT DISCLOSURE NOTICE OF TERRORISM
INSURANCE COVERAGE

On November 26, 2002, President Bush signed into law the
Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002 (the "Act"'). The Act
establishes a short-term program under which the Federal
Government will share in the payment of covered losses caused
by certain acts of international terrorism. We are providing you
with this notice to inform you of the key features of the Act, and to
let you know what effect, if any, the Act will have on your premium.

Under the Act, insurers are required to provide coverage for
certain losses caused by international acts of terrorism as defined
in the Act. The Act further provides that the Federal Government
will pay a share of such losses. Specifically, the Federal
Government will pay 90% of the amount of covered losses caused
by certain acts of terrorism which is in excess of an insurer's
statutorily established deductible for that year. The Act also caps
the amount of terrorism-related losses for which the Federal
Government or an insurer can be responsible at
$100,000,000,000.00, provided that the insurer has met its
deductible.

Please note that passage of the Act does not result in any change
in coverage under the attached policy or bond (or the policy or
bond being quoted). Please also note that no separate additional
premium charge has been made for the terrorism coverage
required by the Act. The premium charge that is allocable to such
coverage is inseparable from and imbedded in your overall
premium, and is no more than one percent of your premium.

ILT-1018 (9/04)



ISSUED BY: POLICY NO:
ISSUED TO:

PRIMARY CONTINUITY ENDORSEMENT - SEVERABILITY
(WHEN COPY OF ORIGINAL MAIN FORM APPLICATION WAS NOT RECEIVED)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:
Non-Profit Management and Organization Liability Insurance Policy

In consideration of the payment of premium, it is hereby understood and agreed that the Insurer shall not be liable to make any payment
for Loss in connection with any Claim for, based upon, arising out of, directly or indirectly resulting from, in consequence of, or in any
way involving any fact, circumstance or situation of which an Insured Person had knowledge or information as of

provided such Insured Person could have reasonably believed as of such Continuity Date that such fact, circumstance or situation might
give rise to a Claim.

It is further understood and agreed that this endorsement shall only apply to any Insured Person who had knowledge or information as of
the date set forth above of such fact, circumstance or situation.

Nothing herein contained shall be held to vary, alter, waive or extend any of the terms, conditions, exclusions or limitations of the above
mentioned policy, except as expressly stated herein. This endorsement is part of such policy and incorporated therein.

This endorsement is effective at the inception date stated in Item 2 of the Declarations or effective at 12:01 A.M. on
, if indicated herein. Complete the following only when this endorsement is not prepared with the policy or is to
be effective on a date other than the inception of the policy.

Authorized Representative

CIRI 72062 (08-1996)



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY Item V
DATE EVENT EC ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Apr20 | Available
Thur, Apr21 | Available
Fri, Apr 22 Available
Sat, Apr 23 Rampage vs New Orleans CL Arena 9:00 AM Team practice
10:00 AM Visiting team practice
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-10P Football game
10P-10:30P Post-game autographs
Rampage MW | Banquet A 9:00 AM Set-up
2:30P-8P Junior Rage Dance Team
Ferris State University MW | Banquet B/C 3:00 PM Set-up
4:30P-8P Banquet
Rampage MW | BanquetD 5:00 PM Set-up
6:30P-Half Time | School night t-shirt distribution
Rampage MW | Under the stairs | 3:00 PM Set-up
6:30P-Half Time | School night food/beverage distributiol
Sun, Apr 24 Sting AH Arena 9:00 AM Load-in
2:00 PM Chair set
5:00 PM Sound check
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-8:05P Phantom Planet
8:05P-8:30P Intermission
8:30P-10:30P Sting
10:00 PM Load-out
Sting MW | Banquet C/D 2:00 AM Set-up
6A-11P Crew catering
Mon, Apr 25 | Available
Tue, Apr 26 Available
Wed, Apr27 | Métley Criie CL Arena 6:30 PM Doors
7:30 PM Performance
Thur, Apr 28 | Available
Fri, Apr 29 Available
Sat, Apr 30 Grand Valley State University | AH Arena 10A-1P Commencement ceremony
Grand Valley State University | MW | Banquet A/B 9:00 AM Set-up
10:30A-1P Post reception party
Rampage vs Colorado CL Arena 7:00 PM Doors
8P-10:30P Football game
10:30P-11:50P Post-game autographs
Sun, May | Available
Mon, May 2 Available
Tue, May 3 Davenport University AH Arena 7:00 PM Commencement ceremony
Wed, May 4 Available
Thur, May § Available
Fri, May 6 Available
Sat, May 7 Green Day CL Arena 7:00 PM Doors
8:00 PM Performance
Sun, May 8 Available
Mon, May 9 | Available
Tue, May 10 | Available
Wed, May 11 | Available
Thur, May 12 | Available
Fri, May 13 Available
Sat, May 14 Available
Sun, May 15 | Available




Mon, May 16 | Available
Tue, May 17 | Available
Wed, May 18 | Available
Thur, May 19 | Rampage CL Arena 6:30P-9:30P Season ticket holder party
Fri, May 20 Available
Sat, May 21 Rampage vs Los Angeles CL Arena 6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-10P Football game
10P-10:20P Post-game autographs
Sun, May 22 | Available




S0/0T/v

-V wooljfed = J-V T1vVd
[[eH 2ouBuLIONSd SOA] = Ad

A-V A00[13AQ 1oAY = -V O
roIy AI9[[eD) pUuBl) = DD
H-V swooy Sunasiy JooAQ =H-V O

I D-VslleHnquyxg = D~V HA J-V swooy Sunso Als[fen puelD = -V D
0001 :2ouepuany pajewnsy | (A MOHS Nd00:9-INV00:L Vv H3 STIOLS NVIAVdS
NOISS3S WJOE: - INdOE€ 070959
Avaad NdOE:€-NdS 1:€ J11ve
NOISSES NdST:€-INdST:T aTivd
SMvaag WdST1:Z-NdSH: 1 oTIvd
NOISS3s ST T-INdSY:Tl EQ AL
HONNT WASYTI-INVSHTT o2711vd
NOISS3S INVSH 1 T-INVSH0L H-DT0 9D
NOISS3s WJ00:S-INVOE: L aT1ive
NOILLVILSIOTY® LSVANVIIE IVOE:L-INVOE9 JT1ve
005-00€ HL 7 A\/ 0ST L % JA:90UBpUIRY parewissg | &1 SIARNY INAITO NV00:9 9Z1d4d OONIHS 0Z TRV "aam
1dvdad S1sAnND NJ00:8
v % O TYNOILLJO IN00:9
HONN1 WdStiT1
WYYO0ud V008
dN-1IS/STARNIY JIV.LS WV00:9 a1ivd TYNOILLYNYALNI INI'INOTIOLS
SONLLITA 4-d 99
MOHS N00:L-Nd00:T1
N NI-avO1 Nd00:T1-INV00:8 D% dHd MOHS A00d 0JSAS
MO A0 wre((:1 — wdpo:ol Hda
(81/4 Jo s8) 1701 uno) 334jO xod 3JUEULIOLId] wdgg:01 — wdgo:8 Hdd
Hd( 03 20w 15900 wdgp:L v lreg
uad() Supesg wdog:L Hdd
uadQ £qqo] wdQ:L Hda
BEL L | wdog:, —wdgg:9 v ed
uado s100(] IO wdpg:9 Hdd
uondaoay wdpg:g —wdpo:9 uoyouNyaLd/V Ifed
feawry 3sanp/uado Alioed wdpg:g £qqoT yslam ‘DD
[eALLIY JUSID wdgo: | Vv lred
SSB]D) JAISE we(Q: | - Wepo:0l Hdd FANNIA
U220 00T sALLy 03 uiSaq sjusprg weg[:6 Hdd LIJANES 4001 STAAS LNV TN
/IBUWIp OGS / SSB[O 13ISEW (g :30UBpUINY parewnsy | MV u] A0 ureg:01 — wepo:g Hdd 7 ONINTNYVd JFHJOLSIHO
MOHS Nd00:$-Nd00-T1 V HE
HONMT NdO0: 1-INVOE T T VO
DONILIAN INV00:6-NV00:8 VD
0001 :3ouepuony parewnsy | (W NI-QVO1 INd00:Z1-NV00:L v HY STYOLS NV.LIVdS
DONDNOMLAN INd00:8-INd00:9 oT11Ivd
1dvdda sasnd 9 Nd0£:T1 LITALS NOAT
HONN? INOE:TI-NVOE T T 2711vd
Avaid NV SH:6-INVOE:6 JTIve
SNOISS3S INVOE TT-INVOE:L DV10959
NOILVYLSIOTY® LSV IIVIIL NVOE:L-INVOE9 J2TIve
00$-00€ HL % A\/ 0ST L 7» JA:20uEpuUaNY pajewnsy | g3 STAREY INJITO V009 3IZIdd OONIHS 61 TIdV "SANL
s Ty e R : S e ey 5 T T B L TR .u..W
NOLLONYLSNOD/SNOILVIAJO o) | NOLLONNJ FWIL INIAT ALVA

S00T dVHA — ATAHEIM

HOVId SOA=Z



§0/0C/¥
4-V 300[19AQ 10ATY = 4-V Od
Baly A19[[en) pueln =0OH
H-V Swooy Sunadn joo[1eA0 =HV O

g-v wooljeqg = -V TIvd
[[eH soueuLIoyiad SOA2d = Ad

[4 D~V s[leH 1quyxd = D~V HH J-V swooy Sunedy Ass|feD pueld = 4-V D
N3ZdO S¥00d IAISLNO AR Ag907THdAd
1ISTY IDVIS Nd00:S-Wd00-€
MDFHO ANNOS Wd00:£-Nd00-T
SNO04 ONILHOIT Wd00:T-INd00-C1
062 :9ouepuany pajewinnsy | AV NI JAON V00:11-INV00:8 IOVIS Ad NOILVSNIS JVINONIS INO
NI AvVOT40 AN Nd00:S
NI V0T 30LIgIHXd Wd00:€
NI AvOTdTOIHIA Nd00T
NI-avO1 Wd00:$- Wd00:1
1S SADIAYAS FJONVINGNY
0001 :eduepuany pajewnusy | gV [Nl NO DNIANVT ¥3.LdODITIH NV SH9 JHH 40 NOLLVIOOSSV NVOIHOIN
1no-avol Nd00:8-INd00-¥ V HA
HONNT NdO00:T-INVOE:T 1
LSvDivadd WV00:6-INV00-L v 11vd
0001 :Pouepuayy parewnsy | (W MOHS Nd00:7-INV00:-L V H3 STIOLS NVLIVdS
LINONVE SAAVMY Wd00:6-INd0€ 9 q711vd
NOILLJFOTd NdO£:9-INdOE-S ONNJ-d
1NO-avo1 SLidIHXd Wd00:$-Nd0E-€ 2T1vd
NOISS3S Wd0E - INdOE-€ 3-v Od
Avadd NJOE:€-NdST'E 2711vd
NOISSIS WdST:€-INdST-T aTivd
AvIad WdS1:T-INd00-T J27T1vd
NOISSIS Wd00:Z-Nd00:1 H-D71009
NOISSaS NdSY 1-WdS-T1 a-v Od
HONMT WdO00: T-IWV St 11 2T11vd
NOISS3S VS TT-INVSH0L a1ivd
Jvaad NVSPOI-INVSTO0L oT11Ivd
NOISSIS WVST01-INVS16 FVOod
AvIdd INVS1:6-INV00:6 2Tivd
NOISS3S WV00:6-WV00-8 aTivd
d NOLLVILSIOTE® LSVLIVIdd WV00:8-INV00-L oT11vd
00#-00€ H.L 7 A\/ 05T L 7 N:eouepuany pajewnsy | A STARIEV LNAITO WVO0E9 dZRdd OONIHS 17 1144V "SYNHL
— = e e T T T T AT ..&...1 = 5 :m.“..,w.._ﬂ.l. Iﬂ._hrﬂ‘uu||u 1 1”\ “~ —r— rw
1no avo Nd00:9-INd00-€ JO®dHd
SONILITN 4-aoo
N MOHS NJ00:€-INV00:6 D% dHd MOHS 004 OOSAS
HONNT WdSITl
ONINIVAL/ONILIIN W00+ INV00:8
LSvnivadd WVO0E:L AHJOSOTIHd
(N | dNLAS/TVARNY YOLVLITIOVA WV00-L g-v O ONIAIND S.NOINN NIMAI
NOILJIDTd 00:8-INd00:9 v 1Ivd
ONILIIN INd00:9-Wd00:S a0
HONNT Nd00 1-IWVOE 1! Vv 1Ivd
ONILIIN V00 11-INV00:01 29
ONILIIN WVO00:01-INVO0E-8 a9
ONILIIN V0E:6-AV00:8 vD
LSvDIvaid Wd00:6-INV00:L v 11vd

S00T dVHA — ATAHIM
HOVId SOAZU



S0/0T/y

d-v wooljeg = -V TIvd
[[eH 9oueuLIONa] SOA2d = AQ
DV slieH #qiuxd = D-V HH

4-V J001I2AQ 1oARY = 4-V OF

ea1y A19[[eD pueln = OO

H-V swooy] Sunssy Jooa0 =H-V O
J-V swooy Sunasiy A1s[jen) pueln) = J-V D

N dNLAS/TIVARIYY 44VIS NV00:L J-VD [ Tvad SdNOYO NOLLYVONAT AINLIHM
INTINVNINOL
QTOH VXAL/INIAT ALRVHD WV00:Z1-Nd00:Z
NOILVYLSIOTS Wd00:Z-INd00:Z1 INTNVNINOL WA
009 :9oUEpUANY palewnsy dN LIS/IVARNEV INd00:T1 v 11vd QTOH SVXIL NIATIHO FHL NO 134
1N0 avol INd00:L- NdOE€
NAdO SLIgIHXd INdOE:€- INV00:01 OHA STDIAYAS FONVINGNY
av NOISS3S INdOE01- INVSH8 ao 40 NOLLVIOOSSY NVOIHOINW
SNVINYAJTd J1d
MV _NIFAON WNd00:8-NV00:8 Ad mFmemmm mo S_mmo £T ,_EAE 'LVS_
m<zEmm INd00:L-INV00:6
NOILVILSIOTI WVOE'8 AWEAVYOV ONINIVYL 41V1sd
N dNLIS/TYATIIY d4V.IS WV00:L O-vD | TV SdNOYD NOLLYONAT AGNLIHM
1N0 IAON VO£ T-IN0£:01
FONVINIOIYId WdS:01-INd00:8
NddO ONILVIS WNdog:L
NA4O A9901 Nd00:L
Na4O SY00d FAISINO NdO£:9
MOdHD ANNOS Nd00:9-INd00:+
(81/¢ 30 sB) £69 uno) 30Yjo Xod | AV NI JAOW INd00:ZI-INV00'8 Ad LI HLYOM L.NIV 9H TIID
JANNIA INd00:6- WdO0E:L WOOIMIVOod ANNIA ONILIIW @IVOE ANVJNOD
NOILLJIOT INdOg:L- WdST:9 ONN4d OY VLI %2 NOJI SONAVd SINOT
Lsvivadd INV00:8-INVOE:9 2T1vd
007-00€ HLL % A\/ 0ST 1 % :90Uepuany pajewnsy | € SIARIIY INAI1D NV00:9 dZI4d ODONIHS
JANNIA WdOg:L- WOE'S
NOISSAS TVIANID INdOE:S- WdOE Y O H4
SNOISSAS INAST:€- INdOE T v T1vd
(Qriand ao
Ol N3dO) IARIA a001d Nd00:6- INd00:Z1 A¥ATIVO ANVID
SNOISSAS N0+~ Wd00:Z1 44990
NAdO SLIdIHXA INdOE:L- INV00:T1 OHA
SNOISSIS INd00:Z1- INV0E:01 aos
NOISSAS TVIINID INVOE:[1- INV0E:01 vV TIvd SAOIAYAS FONVINANY
E Q<3 2<8 01- NVOE: w OHA ..5 zoF<60mm< z<oEo§ 22 TAdY Tid
e SR TSR e o ey e e R RS R a0 e e e,
<aoa5m5§ saooﬁ E<om:
INIOJYIMOd HLIM ONILIAW INVOET1-S1:01
Mvaad INVST:01-NV00:01
NOLLVINASTId Ordgvd WV00:01-WV0E8
71 :2ouepusny porewnsy | (W dNLIS/TVARRIY NV0E'9 4-ao DONILIT XILNOISIA
1N0 JAON INV00:T1-INdST:01 Hdd
NOILdFOTI MO TOYTLIVY WdSH:01-NdST:01 A99OT IFTITA
INFANIVILIILNG NdST:01-INdS1:6
WVIDOYd WJST:6-INdOE 8 Hdd
NOLLONV LNITIS/IINNIG WJOE:8-INd00:L AG9OT YT TIT
NOILVILSIOTY WSS

S00C IVHA — ATAIIM
HOV1d SOAZJ




S0/02/Y
4-V Y00[19AQ JoAl] = 4-V OY

d-Vv wooifeg = -V 1Ivd vary AIs[[eD pueln = DD
[[eH 2oueuLIO)Idd SOASJ = AdQ H-V Swooy] Sunsay JooA) = H-V O
14 O~V SlleH 1quyxg = D-V HA d-V swooy Sunss A1s[jen pueld = 1-V D
SOVINYAQT 14 31d
AV SRIVA SINASTAUL D VIIdO wm ‘_E%« mmE.:.
NOILJIOTYd O£ 8-INd00:9
noysnoIy) (07 :PoUBpuUSRY pajewnsy STATRNAYV LNAITO 66INd00:S-INdO0 NOOY@AVOd YIANNIA OGS INO INVE
ueda(] SI9pUNY Nd00:S
uoissag WdSHv- IWdSY Tl
Jearg young NdSYZI- INVOE T T
uolssag V0L 11- WVO0E:L
uonensigay V00:L SINADOV
GE 1 :dduepuany pajewnnsy | gV [EALLY JUDI[D) WV0E9 VO FIONVINSNI 40 DOSSV NVDIHOIN
NOILJIOTI Wd00:9-INdOE¥ AAITIVO ANVIED
d1-13S MTIO HONNT X0d Wd00:9-INd00-T A00d ONIAVOT
N3O LIgIHXd Wd00:9-Nd00-T J-dHi
JAD0A-ONIAVOT 3SOTO NdOE:1 O-d HA
ATAVILS HONMNT INdOO:T-INVSH: 11 a-d4T11vd
NIdO S¥00da V0011 a-g11vd
JD9HO ANNOS NV00:01 a-g 1Ive
4 NI-QvOT d0LIdIHXd WdO0:CI-AV00:8 J-dHA STVIDI4d0
006-068 -oouepuany pajewusy | [ STIATIIV LNAI'TO NV00-8 J-d H3 SSANISNEI TOOHOS NVOIHIIN
(SINFANLS 009)
(81/¢ 30 s&) 966 IO Xog IVSIVIHTI NIJO d0€:01-d0t L
SNddO AddO1 Wd0£:9
Nva SNVINYEJI1d 91d

AV <m¢< OZE.<mm $30N ONILHOIT Emoo w-2<oo w >Q m._.memMn_ MO émmo L »:Mm< ‘agm

NI AIMOTTV JO.LIFIHXT Nd00:8-INd00:S
g gS0TO AD0A HNIAVOT d00:S STVIDILAO
™ NI-AQvOQT dO.LIGIHXd Wd00:$-INd00:-Z1 0-9 Hd SSANISNE TOOHOS NVOIHOIN
IVSYVIHTI d0€:01-d0g L
Iva SNVIAREQd1d 91d
AV <mm< OZE.<mm S3NO ONILHOIT Emco“o-2<oo“w Ad SLNISTAd 4D vIddO oN A§m< mmD._.

T

T S e e

P e | S
,_<mm<mmm¢ d0E11-d0E L

= L S L=

ava SNVANAATTd 31d
SLNESTYd ¥D V3O ST TRIdY NOW_

SEoo % 2<oo w

AV <mﬁ< OZ.E.<M_w mDUOm ONLLHDI'T

= =

M<Z=>~mm Emoo L-IWV00:6

NOILVYLSIOTI WVY0E:8 ANIAVIV ONINIVIL 3LVLSd

[N dALIS/TVARIYY 44V.LS VO00:L VD TVIY SdNOYD NOILVINAT AINLIHM

TVSAVIHTI INdOE:01-INdOE-9 SNVINYEEAd1d J1d

AV Z_ m>02 Emoo o §<oo 8 Ad mHmemdm AD émmO
AVNINGS Emoo n E<oo m

NOILVILSIOTI WVO0E'8 ANWIAVIV ONINIVIL 3LVLST

S00Z dVHA — ATAddIM
HOVT1d SOAZJ



$0/02/y

d-v wooifed = J-v 11vd

[[eH 2oueuLIO}Isd SOAS(d = Add

-V F0O[1AQ I2ALY = J-V OY
B3Iy AI9[[eD puel) = DD
H-V swooy Sunssy Joo[sA0 = H-V O

S OV S[leH 1quUxg = D-V HA d-V swooy 3unasy A19[[eD pueln = -y O
AV N340 $300d JAISLNO d00:9 AQ SLNISTAd YO VIddO
g V1VD NOLLVANNOA
0o 13NONVE Wd00:Z1-INd00:§ d-v 11vd HLIOMYALLNE /LLIDA0Td
V8 Eo,& ivO 29: SH m\:;mooodmz 0¢€ TRIdV "LVS
JONVA 2<8 T-Nd0001
NOLLONY JAI'T ® JANNIA Wd00:01-Wd0E:8 g% v 1Ivd
SNIDFd NOLLONV LNITIS NJO£:8-INDOE 9 ONNA-d
SNID3F NOILVILSIOT Nd00:9 AddOTHSTam
ANOH TVIID0D NJO£:9-INdOE S WOOdaIVOod
009 :9ouepua)y pajewnsy | [ ONNd-d NI dN.LIS V008 ONNd-d 1TIvd | 1T1vd 3NT9-N-JOVId 4vOod ATIM FHL
H-DO
HONNT WdO00: 1-INd00:Z1 3ao
Avaad NOE:€-INdO0ET ONNd-d
JAvadd WVOE01-INV00:01 ONNJ-d
NOISSAS TVIANID WAOET-INVOES dTivd
SLIgIHX3 WdO0: - INVOE:L JT11vd
ISVA-g/NOILVIISIOTT WV 00:8-INVO0E:L WNISOdNAS
0§ :3ouepusny pajewnsy | [N dnias NV00:9 SHOMLAN AdNINI NIVIE TN LSIM
NI JAON JOLIGIHXT INd00:L-INd00:Z
Q0L :20uEpuUINY pajewtnsy AVARRIY LNAITO Wd00:Z1 V HA "D0SSY ADIAYAS A0Od TOOHIS IN
wedd( sa3puany Wd00:Z1
Teunwuag INd00:TI-INV00:L SINFOV
S¢1 :oduepueny pajewnysy | Jv [EALUY JUal[D) NVO0£:9 JvVD FONVINSNI JO D0SSV NVOIHOIN
g STVIDIIIO
006-0S8 :2ouepuayy pajewnsy | [} J1NO-AQvOT1 YOLIGIHXT d00:Z1-INV00'8 J-d HA SSANISNE TOOHIS NVOIHOIN
(81/F JO se) 1£6 uno) 32430 Xog FONVINRIOLITd Wd00:01-WdOE:L
NAdO DNILVIS Wd00:L
INLOTT INd00:L-INdOE:9
SNAdO A9401 NdST:9 SNYIAAI 14 31d
b\ 4 NEL() mmooo memp:o saoo w Ad SINASTId YD VIIdO 62 TRIdV Tid
e B 53 o e ik T B erlis = e e P e P e 0 e e | B e S
.hzm>m MANV w~ mEh oz;mmz TINdOO: m-2<8 8 VO SINVE TVIIA3d QAVANVLS
ONILIIN INd00:S-INV00:8 0 FAILOAdSYId ODLSOD DNINOAM
WOOIMIVOod JINFWIINTNNOD
INTATONTNINOD d-v 11vd JINFWLIVIA NOLLYINAT NSAD
uoissag WdSE - INVSHTI
Jeaig young WdSH:TI- IWVOE: 11
uoIssag WVOE: 11~ INV00:L SLNAOV
SE1 :aouepuany pajewnsyg | JV [ALLLY JU31[D WV0£:9 a-vo FONVINSNI 40 DOSSY NVOIHOIN
1N0-avOT1 JOLIdIHXA Wd00:8-INd00°T
NAdO SLIGIHX3 Wd00:Z-INV00:1 1
STIARNIV LNAITO
STIVH V006
g OLNI AIMOTTV SYOLIIHXT V008 J-d HA STVIOILIO
006-058 :eouepuony pajewnsy | Y ATEWASSY HONNT X0d Nd00:Z-INV00:9 MO0d ONIAVOT SSANISNE TOOHDS NVOIHOIN

S00T AVHA — ATAHIM

HOV1d SOAZT




$0/0Z/%
-V J00[3AQ 19A] = J-V OY

d-v wooifjeg = q-V 11vd vaIy A19[[eD pueln =00
[IeY 2oueunopod soASd = Ad H-V swooy Sunssp JoosA) =H-V O
J-V s[leH yqiyxg = D~V HA d-V swooy Sunasy A19[[eD pueln = J-V D
SLIgIHX3 J -9 HA FONTATINOD
v NOISSIS TVYANID a-v 11vd ALNNDIS ANVIIWNOH IN
ALTI00S NOLLYONAd
N NOILLNTFANOD ds-vs OV D ‘VHA ADOTONHOAL % TYIILSNANI 1IN
TVSAVAHTI N3dO do1-dL
AV E m>oz di-vs Ad ~> mmoA_ Ommc S AVIN 'SYNHL
,_.DO m>02 VvZi-d0g'8
(81/p30se) 68L1 uno)d YO xog FONVINIOIIAd d0€:8-dL
(81/4 3o se) gg¢ auNno) 9YJQ xogd FJONVINLOIYAd d0¢:¢-dT
(81/t30 SB) Opp[ unoD) 3dyjo xod | AV FONVINIOIIAd dz1-v0£:0l Ad ATIOTdXT FHL VI0d
1N0 FAON dv-dz1
AV FONVINIOIYId dS1:Z1-VOE0l dHY LIFONOD SSTIOV — 0S¥D
ALFIDOS NOILYONA3d
NI SAOW V Hd >OO:_OZ.IUM_H 2% TVIILSNANI IN
S e N e TR B ISt 7 S s e e R S S E LR e Rt | [ R g s e e G Ao |
(31/¥ 30 SEB) £061 :WUN0D YO Xog FONVINIODIAd
NI JAON Ad YTI01dXd FHL vI0d
NOILLVANNO4
LANONVE dVD INFWIONVAQY INIANLS
TVSYVAHTY d9-do€€
NI JAOW dT-vg g Ha LYIONOD SSTOIV — 0SID
FONTIHINOD
FONTILINOD Nd00:S-NV00:L av od n-o j<m YWOQVIL HLTVEH WN¥LOAdS
T S e | B ot e S | |y et Rt | RS e S G e R e
R S O | e ) o ) e s ) -] L S e e
1N0 AOW V0£:2-d0E 01
(81/t 30 sB) $T¥ UN0D IO Xog FONVINIOIIId d0£:01-dOE L
(81/t 3o sB) LTH WNOD YO X0g FONVINIOIIAd d9-d¢
NI ZAON d{-Ve
S Ca P S S Weee, 5 B P R . on PR s S e | T = X y
Hzm>m MINV SI m——.ﬂ. Zopmmomm Wd00:L-INd00:¥ EOOMDM<Om ZO_.EMUNM m>UMO
110 QvoT Nd00:9-NdOET
S43IANILLY-NIJO TIVH LIGIHXT WdOE-T-INV00:11
(0L :90UEpUSNY pajewnsg SYOLIGIHX3-NZJO TTVH LIGIHXI NV00:01-INV8 v Ha *J0SSV FDIAYAS OO TOOHIS IN
NOOYTIvVE
Y04 19vdad S1SaNO NdOO'L
IWVID0Ud WdSHS
FARYY S1SAND NdOE:S
N STARNIV INAITD WNdOEY 4-v 04 NOILdFOTY HLTVIH WNYLO3dS
1NO GAON VO£:Z-INdOE01
(81/¢ 30 SB) T€6 UNOD YO Xod FJONVIWIOLIIId NJOE:01-NdOE L
NAdO ONILVAS Nd00:L
INLOFT Wd00:L-INd0t9
N3JO Ad€01 WNAS1:9 SNVWIAad 14 F1d

S00C AVHA — ATHIIM
HOVId SOAZ



S0/07/y
-V J00I2AQ JoAr] = 4-Y O

J-v wooljeg = J-V 1TTIvd eary Al9j[eD) puelh =DD
—_wm Ooﬂdgo.tom SO >0Q = Ad m-< SWO0Y wcﬁvoz v—OO—uo>O =HYVY O
D-V slieH ¥quyxd = DOV HA J-V swooy Sunss A19[en pueld = -V D
g ‘v11vd
Iy NOILLNIANOD Wd00:$-NV00:8 H-VO'dVOOEHT 0SSV ,_<._.zm5 NVOIHOIN 71 AVIA 'S¥NHL
o 1 ~GoTiva | ———3SVOmONS | ]
4v MOHS v Ha SSANISNEG ADYTNNOD 40 JFFWVHD
IVSIVIHTA d01-d0g:L
SV TVSYVIHTA d9-d0g:€ Ad X TVIISSVIO — 0SYO
WOON@IVOg
g ‘1 0¥’V 11vd
™ NI JAON Nd00:S-INV00'8 ‘H-V O ‘4-V D ‘0-dHd "JOSSY TV.NEA NVOIHOIN 11 AVIN QM
sy L S R ) R s B (TR N e s A L
ISVOMOHS
v NI IAON Q-0 11vd 'V Hd SSANISNE IDYTWNOD 4O ¥IFNVHO
TVSIVAHTY d01-d0E:L
AV NI JAON d1-vs Ad X TVIISSVIO — OS¥D
dq
o _NIFAOW Wd00'S-NV00:8 oOmm< ,_ﬁzm_o NVOIHOIN 01 AVIA 'Sanl
5 N e 017 | [ e ., =i N-.s_ | R P s e
(81/t JO SB) L0T UN0D 32430 X0g FONVINIOLITd d01-d0€:8
(81/1 30 SB) ZPT “JUN0) 32430 Xod FONVINIOSYAd dL-dog:s
SV NI IAON dr-vs Ad Q1a10934d0D AIAVa
g
[y dn-11s mobéooma WdOO: m-2<8 8 UOmm< TVINIQ NVOIHOIN 6 AVIN 'NOW
e R e [ e e S e AR RS S A R e = (BT T e SR e s e T o
;INTAT MAN V SI STHL ozﬁmmz znam 11-NV00:8 ~ JIVNIAAS 14133
1N0 FAON d8-d§
83% ms SIS1 E_oo 2930 xom AV moz<2mo§mm %-mm Ad IA §dOd — meo
i = s R e e e R e | [ PR e e [ T DRI oL
{INAA Bmz < "SISTHL oEHmmz z&m 11 zéo w 30D AVNINAES ETTE
v WOdd 4V O JNO¥d SH VMV.LLO LS3M
A1d100S NOILYONAd
N NOILNJFANOD dL-v8 v Ha ADOTONHOFL % TVRILSNANI TN
(81/7 J0 s8) sps1_uno) 2oyjo xod | 3V FONVINIOIIAd d01-d3 Ad 1A SdOd — OS4D
N NOUd vZi-dtl g Tivd | WOdd TOOHOS HOIH ¥HINID NOdAd
N WOdd <N_.,§ v T1ve zoﬁ TOOHOS HOIH \Smao\_ _LAVIN LVS
SicE = et = : T A e | PR | A e e [ s 52 ] [ L e I
SLIFIHX3 J-d HA mozmm.&zou
v NOISSTS TVIINID a-v 11vd ALNNOIS ANVIFNOH IN
ALII00S NOILYONdd
i) NOILNIANOD ds-v8 OV O ‘VHE ADOTONHOAL % TVIILSNANI IN
Aw:io se) 8: :soo 0O xom AV moz<2¢o..2mm do1-ds Ad IA mmon_ ommo 9 AVIN T4
i e e | e [ T e R | R e e e Bt el R S e
J-V Od
H-VO
SLNOMVTYg 3-a9
00T AVHA — A TAddM

HIOVId SOAZT




$0/0T/Y
J-V 001940 19AR] = 4-V OY

-V wooljeg = d-V TIVd valy AI9[[ED pUBID) = DD
[[eH 9>ueuuoy1ad soAdd = Ad H-V Swooy Sunas Joo[19A0Q =H-V O
D-V SileH 1quxg = J-V Hd -V swooy Sunady A1sj[eD pueld = J-V D

R e e e O | e R A o IR MER W SR T e e D s Sy ][R s T
._.DO N>OE d8-ds
{81/ 30 se) ( JuN0D RO Xog FONVIARIOIIdd ds-d¢
AV TVSIVIHTA dob-cdi Ad ANOHJWAS HLNOA - OS¥D
g
A 100 JA0 ZOOZ >m O Hi Ume< A<.H.Zma Z<O~EU:2 STAVIN'NNS
s T ) ) | S T s N PR RO i vy e b T o PR S nns Y PR s . s [ e
g ALdvVd Emoo oTEmoo S
[ NOLLVILSION NV00:8-AV00:9 V H3 N ANVE AR QUTHL HL1d1d
av NOILJZOTY ONIAdIm a-0 11vd ONIAGIm L10OJS VHSV.LVN
1NO FAON di1-dol
(81/t 30 s8) 9101 :WmMOD RYO xog FONVINRIOLIIAd do1-d8
AV lviaddn d0€:L-dL Ad X TVIISSVTIO — OS¥D
NOOI@IVOd
d ‘v 11vE
9. NOILNFANOD INd00:S-INV00:8 ‘H-V QO ‘4-V D O-gHi "Q0SSV TVINId NVOIHOIN
av g 711ve WO¥d TOOHOS HOIH DOOBNM<A 1 AV 'LVS
e e e [ T s TR e - R e oo s T R e St
g Zommmmw
A NOLLdIOTd d01-dS o]0} TVANNY VAW TVINIJ NOSYFLLIVd
: S
[ SLIgIHXd INd00: 1T-IAV00-¢ v He NOY INVE JIAR QUTHL HLIIS
SANT ONILIIN VO0g-0l
SNIDIL ONILIIN V6 ONILIIN
N SINTFNHSTIITA V0¢-8 v Od | INFWIDVNVIN dOL SHIOVNYI ALID
av 1INONVE a-g 1Tivd JYANNIA SSINISNE NI IONITTIOXT
(31/4 30 SB) 88Z1 WMOD NYO X0d FONVINIOLIdId doi-d8
A4 Lvagdn d0g:L-dL Ad X TVIISSVID — OSdD
d dg ‘v 1T1vd
[P ZO~HZN>ZOU Emoo 0l- 2<oo w I-< o .._-< D‘0-d3d UOmm< .._<.~.Zmo Z<O~:U~Z €1 AVIN 'Tdd
= a3 SEP [ [V Ty e T, o | [ g o [ o
av NI FAON ad ..5<m me.EQ mmmeDm ZH mUZm\_quXm
TVSIVIHTA doi-dog-L
AV ONH JIN di-dv Ad X TVIISSVID — OS¥D
WOOIQVOodd
S00T AVHA — ATAIIM

HOVId SOAE




WIS Fagal

FAC,ROGH . RFT

FAY G00E U
91 - G

.2 -~ \!

taed

dovenzat [

o
A R

o atad By B
gncivi

— PR
[ S

.

Rumpuge LY

VDt

Rampana 171




fr

L2003

- 75
- BAT
- Al
- M

-l

[

P HED

i

%

A

Ty
o

L4
=

3

iy
02

N
Vi
I.’\.

4L 200C

- Tu
=

- LAT

con
Dl

L

i

o
b

FETT

J

]
¥

i_{

3

£
h

gryie

Bl

mff

e

Gragar

[rl

£




Fal: R0

aneter Availabi

CRAML RAF L

o AT maprsamymr it al) = anrys g & ere xSy by b ssnw
ALT 200E
N

v

i - T Cluvhson [T7

T £ . - i
I besys C

AcchGha,

RAhTHE

&

[

25 - Thil AZ¢
RTravis

B - BT

A

pr

Ay




FRL R

e
L

B

E=Y

e
[T N |

fet d e

—
LN ST T Y

TS T

T
s v A o1l

3

THE Honlfient

SniEEIn

Honibent
BaptGant
Sriffins

ol jiv qontcant,

e P
O REHGE

03 ATLAGAY
[T!

T
Lol

[T] {1iGOA)

P
MR L O

1

iher Avallohiliiy Sesovi

)

74

AT

A

g
Tt

et



=

1

ot et s
L= I S T NG £ B

]

1
i3
n
P

T e

2 o
A de B
P

2
B
t

i
= =

E
rei

Griffins (8 (Z300MD)
pdronr 07
Grifiins L[5 [1i008k)

JT R 17

GVsL RIS VH T
LM

B e
Griffins

L
-t
ot !

Graffiea LT3 01100MD




Fab RO BRI

a5 - THL
Gt - FR

S8
OB - U
05 - Adh
¢ TUE
-

"4 Ty

i 1
¥
1. "
L
e L ]
- .
£

.
Ve

e D AR ER Y.V

Geiffins 077 (110080

(ZL00F)

Griffing 161 (1i00AN)
M
SLORTES 7
TRUCKS [V
RS
[ e
o
o
RUKE
OLUBIES [42
T LI

o
—t

H

Lo T T
i
Ly
P
P
et
<=
i
=%

—
et

alonizs o
ns U571 (1103AR)

Toonptey dvotlagility fesord

GRARL



L%
A 1)
1% - gED
ic i
i7 - "R’

i

-
Griffins [T3

-
Lrifes

Svnihoo

Svacars
Syachro TT]
ayacrrs 00
Synchive LT
Synoare 100

Syichre T3

Griffins

{1100AM)

e S g
at \.5 e ¥

riffins 1H6ar

{ZL00FN)

I

A
HEB.320

GEARL 8

P

7
o
5

/

Rt

Y

P



FAC.RDOHRFT Cegnptar Avaliohilidy Aspory G0 Paged

wLRFLEX

GRAL R

{'«IPH '—!\"(),'j T, - S—— A —————

3 - THL
14 - 5% Grifiins 72 (3100
P& 28 Grif<inz ©70 Uiodai

28 - PRI DaTraEn [13

-f GAEL Cor [U
|

Bavgago- LI

CRFEIGR [T
i il
k g
- Ty
A £

T 't‘-l L IR
i)
o

e T
7 - WED




Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Lew Chamberlin

VAN ANDEL

ARENA

Item VI

GRAND R“ﬁl’ COUNTY
e e e e e e~
B o e

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION, 5HOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Memorandum
To: CAA Board Members
From: Steven R. Heacock, Chairman
Date: April 21, 2005
Re: Finance Committee Appointments

Recently Birgit Klohs and I met to discuss adding members to the CAA Finance
Committee. Now that construction is complete and the convention center is fully
operational, we need to develop long-term plans for DeVos Place® and the Van Andel
Arena®. We are privileged that Bob Herr of Crowe Chizek has been a member of the
Finance Committee since its inception and we would like to expand the private sector
representation. Birgit suggested two very capable appointees who have agreed to serve.

1 am pleased to announce that I have appointed Michael P. Freed and David Hoogendoomn
to the CAA Finance Committee. Michael P. Freed is Executive Vice President of
Corporate Resources & Chief Financial Officer of Spectrum Health. David Hoogendoorn
is Managing Partner of Emest & Young LLP. Their bios are attached for your reference.

Van Andel Arenae®

130 Fulton West DeVos Plac.
Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2601 303 Monroe Ave. NW
616.742 6600 Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-223!
Fax 616.742.6197 - 616.742.6501

ax 616.742.6591




bid

Spectrum Health

Michael P. Freed
Executive Vice President of Corporate Resources &
Chief Financial Officer

Michael P. Freed, Spectrum Health’s Executive Vice President of Corporate Resources and
Chief Financial Officer (CFO), is a 20-year veteran of healthcare industry management. He
has been in his current position with Spectrum Health since 1997. Previously, Freed served
as VP of Finance and CFO for Butterworth Hospital, from 1995 and until Butterworth

Hospital merged with Blodgett Memotial Medical Center to form Spectrum Health in 1997.

Freed’s responsibilities include Information Technology as executive vice president of
corporate resoutces, as well as financial responsibility for all of Spectrum Health and its
subsidiaries in his capacity as CFO.

Prior to coming to West Michigan, Freed was treasurer and CFO of Central New England
Health Alliance, Inc. (CNEHA). He also was treasurer and CFO of CentMass Systems
Corporation, a predecessor of CNEHA, and served as VP and CFO of HealthAmerica
Pennsylvania, Inc., a 150,000-member, Pittsburgh-based HMO owned by Coventry
Corporation. He has also served as Director of Finance and CFO of Saratoga Hospital in

Saratoga Springs, N.Y. as well as a Senior Accountant with KPMG Peat Marwick in Albany,
NY.

Freed received a bachelor’s degree in Business (Accounting) from State University of New
York at Plattsburgh in 1979 and became a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) in New York
in 1982.

He is 2 member of the American Institute of CPAs, Financial Executives International as
well as the Healthcare Financial Management Association.



El| ERNST & YOUNG LLP

171 Monroe Avenue NW
Suite 1000
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503
616-774-0710

DAVID C. HOOGENDOORN
Managing Partner, West Michigan/Northern Indiana

17 years of experience serving large, complex, multinational clients

Specializing in complex transactions with publicly traded clients, including
mergers and acquisitions, stock compensation, SEC reporting, internal control
reporting, corporate governance and foreign exchange matters

Previous experience includes serving as the Managing Partner of Arthur
Andersen’s West Michigan Practice

Dave serves on numerous client and charitable boards including the Grand Rapids
Right Place Program Finance Committee, the Grand Rapids Chamber of
Commerce Family Owned Business Council, the Gerald R. Ford Council of the
Boy Scouts of America and Grand Valley State University and Western Michigan
University Business School Advisory Boards

Dave is a graduate of Western Michigan University

Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Michigan Association of Certified Public Accountants



Dale H. Sommers

Owner Representative
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

MEMORANDUM

TO: Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
FROM: Dale H. Sommers
DATE: April 25, 2005

SUBJECT: Update of DeVos Place Expansion Closeout

Over the last 30 days the following have been completed:

1. Progressive AE has completed a walk through and review on punch list items
Painting contractor has completed remaining items (including painting of
DeVos Hall/Kitchen Truck Dock doors)

Completion of DeVos place Illuminators Phase 2 — Installed and tested
Completion of fitting of rails for river walk

Expansion joints completed on river walk

Completion of sandblasting

Final signs/graphics completed

Caulking of sidewalks complete

Sealing of concrete complete

10 All sprinkler heads installed and tested

11. Replacement of sidewalk on Michigan completed

12. Numerous punch list and closeout items of miscellaneous nature completed

L

© 0o AW

Next 30 days hope to complete final items, which include (Fiber optic lights in
Ballroom, replacement of pavers on river side, landscaping, and other warranty
work). Closeout/wrap up continues to progress well.

Met with Construction Manager on April 21 (received billing for March and April)
and goal is to have final billings to me for approval by June 8, 2005.

Goal is to have the project complete and closed out by June 30, 2005.

If you have any questions feel free to contact me.

Dale H. Sommers



TO:

Kent County Convention and Arena Authority

FROM: Gary McInerney

SENT: Monday, April 25, 2005

SUBJECT: Potential Sources for New Revenue to be Reserved for Future
Maintenance Needs at the Convention Center and Arena

My Fellow Members of CAA:

I have had an opportunity to think about the “Alternate Revenue Committee”
assignment and have kicked around some ideas with Rich MacKeigan and others. I’m in
the process of putting together a committee with one other CAA member and perhaps
some people from the outside. Some of our thoughts to date include the following
potential avenues to provide an unidentified source of revenue which could be banked for
future needs for both facilities.

1.

1 believe we need a review of our relationship with Ticket Master through
SMG and believe we should carefully consider a portion of the present
ticket fee returned to CAA, to be targeted for this future revenue need
account. As you know, our contract with Ticket Master will expire, I
believe, sometime in 2006 and this is a subject we should, and I'm sure
will be given serious thought to, in the near future. There are a couple of
alternatives but we need to fully discuss this and also fully consider
whether or not there is an “extra dollar” somewhere in this fee.

Fundraising Event. I believe we need to consider having an annual
fundraising event, perhaps partnering with Grand Action and maybe the
Convention Bureau to again target funds to this new endeavor. This will
take “some doing” and our partner would be very important and it’s the
type of event which “Grand Rapidians love”, but there is serious potential
for economic loss if it is not a relevant, timely and attractive event.

Possibility of a Wine and Food Fair. This type of event has done well in a
number of other markets according to Rich MacKeigan, and he has
already obtained strong commitments from some potential partners, like
West Side Beer, Kent Beverage and Greg Gilmore. Also if it should prove
to be successful, we would have the option to sell the show to a show
producer or keep it ourselves. It also has potential to develop local
produce/wineries, etc. We may wish to send a couple of people to the
event in Ottawa, Canada in November to get a feel for the concept. We
will explore the option of the Wine and Food Fair in the near future.

Advertising. I believe there exists opportunities to generate significant
funds and economic benefit through advertising. Rich MacKeigan agrees



with this and is very supportive as well. Without getting very specific,
there are advertising opportunities at the Arena, utilizing some of the
outside space and, at a more modest level, there are some advertising
opportunities at DeVos Place. I will discuss this further in the future.

The purpose of this memo is just to bring you up-to-date on the fact that we are
doing something and I hope to formalize this committee or sub-committee at our next
meeting. Unfortunately I am traveling on Wednesday and will not be able to attend but
thought it important to bring all of you up-to-date. If you have questions, please do not
hesitate to contact me at one of the following.

gary(@mcbowen.com
616-458-6111 —office
616-485-3447 — cell

Gary MclInerney
330 East Fulton
Grand Rapids, M1 49503



